Dan STOICHIȚOIU Alessandro BIROLINI

Ioan BACIVAROV Vidosav MAJSTOROVIĆ

Editors

QUALITY and DEPENDABILITY

PROCEEDINGS

of the
15th International Conference
on
Quality and Dependability

Sinaia, Romania September 14th–16th, 2016

COMMITTEES

INTERNATIONAL SCIENTIFIC COMMITTEE:

Ioan BACIVAROVProfessor at University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania – ChairmanAlessandro BIROLINIProfessor Emeritus at ETH Zurich, Switzerland – Honorary Chairman

Vidosav D. MAJSTOROVIĆ Professor at University of Belgrad, Serbia – Vice-Chairman

Marius BÂZU Scientific researcher, National Institute of Micro technologies, Bucharest

Bruno-Marie BECHARD Professor at the University of Sherbrooke, Canada Allan BROWN Professor at the University of Perth, Australia

Angelica BACIVAROV Professor at the University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania

Michele CANO Professor at University of West of Scotland, UK

Remy GAUTIER Professor at ENSAM, Paris, France

Fabrice GUERINProfessor at the University of Angers, FranceAmilcar GONCALVEZProfessor at the University of Lisbon, PortugalSocrates KAPLANISProfessor at the University of Patras, GreeceNoriaki KANOProfessor at the University of Tokyo, Japan

Dan STOICHITOIU President of SRAC, Bucharest

Liviu MĂSĂLAR Professor Emeritus at the University of Liege, Belgium **Christian ROBLÉDO** Professor and President at the University of Angers, France

Alexandru STAMATIU Professor Emeritus at University of Civil Engineering Bucharest, Romania

Ajit K. VERMA Professor at the Indian Institute of Technology Mumbai, India
Ton van der WIELE Professor at the Erasmus University from Rotterdam, Holland

ORGANIZATIONAL BOARD

Dan STOICHITOIU General Chairman of CCF 2016

President of Romanian Society for Quality Assurance

Ioan. C. BACIVAROV University "Politehnica" of Bucharest

Dragoş MARIAN Manager at Romanian Society for Quality Assurance

USEFUL INFORMATION

Registration of participants:

☐ Tuesday, 13.09.2016, starting with 1700, in the lobby of Palace Hotel

☐ Wednesday, 14.09.2016, 8³⁰, starting with 8³⁰ in the lobby of Palace Hotel ,CCF 2016 Secretariat

Coffee break:

□ Between the 14th – 16th of September 2016, coffee breaks will take place in the lobby of Palace Hotel

Gala Dinner:

☐ Thursday, 15.09.2016, 2000, Hotel International, Restaurant Tirol

The CCF 2016 Secretariat will be open daily at Palace Hotel, between 830 – 1600

SECRETARIAT:

Lorena CHIRITĂ, Dragos MARIAN, Tudor MĂRUNŢELU, Bogdan IVASCU

CCF 2016

THE 15th INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE QUALITY AND DEPENDABILITY

WEDNESDAY, 14th of September 2016

PLENARY SESSION 1

Chairmen: PhD eng. Dan Grigore STOICHIŢOIU - President of the Romanian

Society for Quality Assurance

PhD Isaac SHEPS - Convener of ISO/TC 176/SC2/WG25

(working group for revision of the ISO 9004)

Moving from Product Quality to Organization Quality to Achieve Sustained Success of an Organization. The Future of ISO 9004 *Isaac SHEPS – Convener of ISO/TC 176/SC2/WG25 (working group for revision of the ISO 9004)*

The integrated index of business standardization – Research and Development *Vidosav D. MAJSTOROVIĆ*, *Abuajila M. S RAWENI*, *Nuri Mohamed Saad ALGHERIANI* – *University of Belgrade*, *Serbia*

ISO 9001:2015: A Revolution in Management?

Ioan C. BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

PLENARY SESSION 2

Chairmen: PhD. Prof. Vidosav D. MAJSTOROVIĆ – University of Belgrade, Serbia

M.Sc. Steli LOZNEN - Israel Testing Laboratories Ltd., Israel

Standardul ISO 9001:2015, punct și de la capăt! J.M. Juran și versiunea 2015 a lui ISO 9001 *Firică POPA – QUALIM SRL*

Product Safety Needs a Horizontal Testing Standard? Steli LOZNEN – I.T.L (Product Testing) Ltd., Israel

Risk approach in an integrated quality-environment management system Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN – Compania Apa Braşov Romania Călin Vasile NEAMȚU – Compania de Apa Someş SA Cluj Napoca

Global Harmonization of MED standards Steli LOZNEN – I.T.L (Product Testing) Ltd., Israel

mHealth and consumer electronics

Steli LOZNEN – I.T.L (Product Testing) Ltd., Israel

PLENARY SESSION 3

Chairmen: PhD eng. Prof.univ. Nicolae George Drăgulănescu -

University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Lector univ. dr. Remus Chină - "Dimitrie Cantemir" Christian

University, Bucharest

European Quality Assurance in Education and Romania's Position within the European Higher Education Area (EHEA)

Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Quality in Education Through Quality Management of Informational Flows Remus CHINĂ – "Dimitrie Cantemir" Christian University, Bucharest

Who is afraid of quality in education?

Manuela STOICA – Grup Şcolar Industrial "Toma N. Socolescu" Ploieşti, Prahova

A Decade of Quality Assurance of Education in Romania – Which are its Outcomes? Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU – University "Politehnica" Bucharest Remus CHINĂ – "Dimitrie Cantemir" Christian University, Bucharest

PDCA cycle for school activities of pupils Georgeta BUCŞAN – Micron TQM

THURSDAY, 15th of September 2016

PLENARY SESSION 1

Chairman: PhD Prof. Emeritus Alessandro BIROLINI – ETH Zurich

PhD eng. Univ. Prof. Ioan BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica"

Bucharest, President of ARASEC

Risk Management of Technical Systems

Alessandro BIROLINI – Professor Emeritus at ETH Zurich, Switzerland

A Graph Driven Approach to Data Loss Prevention Michael BEST – Germany

A System Architecture for Monitoring the Reliability of IoT Radu BONCEA, Ioan C. BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Migration of a SOC to SIC (Security Operations Center vs. Security Intelligence Center)
The use of Honeypots for Threat Intelligence
Ionuţ-Daniel BARBU, Cristian PASCARIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV –
EUROQUALROM – ETTI, University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Cloud for Europe Project: New Solutions for Addressing Cloud Security Issues

Radu BONCEA – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Carmen Elena CÎRNU – National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics

Secure Smart Cities

Cristian PASCARIU, Ionuț-Daniel BARBU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI, University "Politehnica" Bucharest

PLENARY SESSION: RELIABILITY OF TECHNICAL SYSTEM

Chairman: PhD eng. Prof. univ. Angelica BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica"

Bucharest

PhD eng. Prof. Alexandru STAMATIU - Technical University of Civil

Engineering Bucharest

45 years of High Level Technical Education in Reliability in Romania

Ioan C. BACIVAROV, Angelica BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Online Platform for Reliability Data Processing

Angelica BACIVAROV, Ioan C. BACIVAROV, Mihai PAULIŞ – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

A Reliable Architecture for a Massive and Continuous Scanner of Web Vulnerabilities in Internet

Eugenie STĂICUȚ, Radu BONCEA, Carmen ROTUNĂ – Romania Top Level Domain, National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics-ICI Bucharest University Politehnica of Bucharest, Faculty of Electronics, Telecommunications and Information Technology

Maintenance Dependence Modeling with Gaussian Copulas

Adrian Stere PARIS, Dana SYLVAN, Constantin TÂRCOLEA – University "Politehnica"

Bucharest

Quantum Theory of Reliability Systems

Alexandru STAMATIU – Technical University of Civil Engineering Bucharest

POSTER SESSION

Chairman: PhD eng. Prof. univ. Ioan BACIVAROV – Director EUROQUALROM,

University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Certification of Quality Management Systems in Media Industry David BALME – Challenge Optimum SA, Geneve, Switzerland

Kaizen: Concepts and Misinterpretations

Jun NAKAMURO – Enna Bellingham U.S.A.

Physical and Logical Security Risk Assessment Procedure for SMEs, according to ISO/IEC 27005:2011 and SR ISO 31000:2010 Standards

Marian FIROIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI,

University "Politehnica" Bucharest

L'utilisation du logiciel Statistica dans le domaine du contrôle qualité Marouane OUBAIABRA – Université d'Angers – ISTIA, Angers, France

Analytic Study on Cyber-Attacks Structure

Ioan-Cosmin MIHAI – Police Academy, Bucharest

Ioan BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

On the Ensuring the Resilience in Communication Networks

Dorina Luminita COPACI, Angelica BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Using Digital Signature to Ensure Information Security

Gabriel PETRICĂ, Ioan C. BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI,

University "Politehnica" Bucharest

VoIP – Nowadays Gateway for a Better Unified Communication

Cătălina GHERGHINA, Angelica BACIVAROV – University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Maintenance Testing of a Software Product

Sabina-Daniela AXINTE, Ioan C. BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI,

University "Politehnica" Bucharest

On Physical and Logical Security Risks Management in the Context of Convergent Security Marian FIROIU, Ioan BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI, University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Systems Reliability and Safety Analysis Using Fault Trees. A FTA Software Packages Comparison

Josselin GADSAUDES – ISTIA – University of Angers, France Ioan C. BACIVAROV – EUROQUALROM – ETTI, University "Politehnica" Bucharest

Process approach of the quality-environment management system according to ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015

Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN – Compania Apa Brasov, Romania

Employee engagement – the key ingredient of business success. Human nature impact on business Petrişor GAGIU – QA Department, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania

FRIDAY, 16th of September 2016

PLENARY SESSION 1

Chairman: Alexandru GIURA – ALRO Slatina Cristian RONCEA – SRAC CERT

Calculating Overall Equipment Efficiency for Management Decision Alexandru GIURA – ALRO Slatina

Six Sigma Tools and the Eight Key to Risk Management Marius FLORESCU – CALITATE TOP 21 SRL

Identification, Monitoring and Treatment of Risks in defense against floods; participation in coordinating the management of emergency situations arising from floods, hazardous weather, accidents at hydrotechnical structures and accidental pollution (according to SR EN ISO 9001:2008, SR EN ISO 14001:2005 and Ord. SGG 400/2015) *Iulia VINTILOIU* – "Romanian Waters" National Administration

Managerial Approach of Occupational Safety and Health According to ISO 45001 in the Health care Sector Steluta Elisabeta NISIPEANU, Ruxandra CHIURTU, Doru Costin DARABONT – The National Research and Development Institute on Occupational Safety – INCDPM "Alexandru Darabonț" Bucharest

Napoleon the 1st' Leadership

Bogdan VISSARION, Cătălina TUŢULEA – SAMSUNG – OTELINOX

Certification – impulse of the profitable business Luigi ENE, Cătălina ȚUȚULEA – SAMSUNG – OTELINOX

Food frauds – practices, legislation, standards and audit Cornelia ŞULEA – SRAC CERT

Reflections on the approach of the audit of risks and opportunities, seen through the perspective of the requirements of the new editions of the management systems standards *Cristian RONCEA – SRAC CERT*

Organizational entropy and creative potential

Alexandru GIURA, Mariana VASILE – QA Department, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania

A Generic Example of an Energy Review in Conformity with ISO 50001 Standard Leonida Brînduş STĂNOIU – Romanian Electrotechnical Committee

CLOSING OF THE CCF 2016 CONFERENCE

Welcome Message

The primary objective of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability CCF 2016 – a jubilee edition – is to provide an international forum for the dissemination of recent information and scientific results in these modern domains.

As traditionally, CCF 2016 is organised by the Romanian Society for Quality Assurance (SRAC), under the aegis of several important international organisations in the field.

We are proud to mention that this edition of the conference has the scientific endorsement of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers – **IEEE** (Romanian section), the world's leading professional association for the advancement of technology, too.

The International Conference in Quality and Dependability – CCF is now a well established brand of excellence among the international scientific meetings in the interdisciplinary field of quality and dependability (reliability, maintainability, safety & security).

It is interesting to mention that the CCF conference was listed as the 3rd longest running conference in the quality and dependability field in the international specialized assessments.

The International Conferences in Quality and Dependability – CCF conferences have a long tradition among the specialists of the field. That's why, we consider useful to remember the main moments that marked the evolution of CCF – from a national scientific meeting to an important international conference in the field.

The first National Conference on Quality and Reliability – CCF '87, organised by the Central Reliability Group of MIEt, took place at Poiana Brasov, in 1987. It was then decided that this conference should become a traditional national scientific event in the field. Therefore, the second edition of the Conference, CCF '88 took place at the premises of 'Minerva', 'Diana' and 'Afrodita' hotels from Baile Herculane, in 1988.

After the political changes of 1989, **SRAC** took over this tradition, by organising the third edition of the Conference – **CCF** '96 at the Hotel 'Roman' from Baile Herculane, in September 1996. The fourth edition of the conference – **CCF** '97 was organised in Sinaia, while the fifth edition – **CCF** '98 was organised in Sinaia too, at the 'Holiday Inn' hotel. **CCF** '99, the sixth edition of the conference took place at the Hotel 'Sport' from Poiana Brasov.

The seventh edition of the conference – **CCF 2000** was organised at the Hotel 'Palace' from Sinaia in the year 2000; it was a scientific meeting with a wide international participation and, as a consequence, it was decided that the further editions of **CCF** should be included in the circuit of the international conferences in quality and dependability and organised every two years. The national journal "**Calitatea – acces la succes**" and the international journal "**Qualite-Forum Scientifique**" were launched during **CCF 2000**, in the presence of the Editors-in-Chief of the two publications.

The next CCF scientific meetings, namely the eighth edition of the Conference – CCF 2002, organized at the Cazino of Sinaia, as well as the ninth edition – CCF 2004 – organized at Hotel Mara in Sinaia were unanimously considered as important international scientific

events in the field of quality and dependability.

The 10th edition of the conference **CCF 2006** –organized at the Casino Conference Hall from Sinaia – was an anniversary one. More than 70 papers were presented by specialists in the field from 10 countries: Argentina, Australia, Belgium, France, Great Britain, Greece, Moldavia, the Netherlands, Switzerland and Romania, too. A special session of **CCF 2006** marked the centenary of the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC).

During the 11th International Conference on Quality and Dependability – **CCF 2008** specialists from 13 countries, including Australia, Belgium, France, Great Britain, Italy, India, Maroc, Moldavia, the Netherlands, Portugal, Switzerland, Tunisia and Romania presented at Sinaia their points of view in more than 60 papers.

The special session "A homage to Joseph M. Juran (1904-2008)" organized at the beginning of the conference represented a tribute to the great "Guru" of quality of Romanian origin **Joseph M. Juran,** the "father" of the modern quality management who passed away at the beginning of 2008.

A special session marked the 15th anniversary of the Romanian Society for Quality Assurance (SRAC) – the main organiser of CCF conferences, too.

More than 50 papers authored by specialists from Australia, Belgium, Czech Republic, France, Great Britain, India, Maroc, the Netherlands, Switzerland, Tunisia and Romania were presented during the 12th International Conference on Quality and Dependability – CCF 2010 organized at the Casino Conference Center from Sinaia.

The participants at **CCF 2010** had the special opportunity to meet Professor Emeritus **Alessandro Birolini**, a remarkable specialist in the field – considered as a Reliability Guru – who presented an invited conference. During **CCF 2010** was launched – in world premiere – the 6th edition in English of the monumental book of Prof. Birolini **Reliability Engineering: Theory And Practice** – published by Springer Publishing House and considered by the specialists in the field as a veritable "Bible of Reliability".

During the 13th International Conference on Quality and Dependability CCF 2012 – organised for the first time in a beautiful area of the Black Sea, at Neptun International Conference Center, specialists from 13 countries, including Australia, Belgium, France, Great Britain, Italy, India, Maroc, Moldavia, the Netherlands, Portugal, Switzerland, Tunisia and Romania presented their points of view in more than 50 papers.

The special guest of the 13th International Conference on Quality and Dependability – CCF 2012 was Mr. Gianluca Mule, Senior Manager of the well-known European Foundation for Quality Management – EFQM who presented the EFQM Excellence Model. The EFQM Excellence Model is the most popular quality tool in Europe, used by more than 30,000 organizations to improve their performances.

During the last day of the conference the evolutions and the perspectives regarding the management, engineering and certification of quality and dependability in Romania and abroad were analysed as a part of the special session **ISO 9000 Forum** – a session that marked the 25th anniversary of this famous international standard. This session celebrated the 20th anniversary of the **Romanian Society for Quality Assurance (SRAC)**, the main organiser of **CCF** conferences, too.

During the 14th International Conference on Quality and Dependability **CCF 2016** – organised at the Palace hotel from Sinaia, specialists from Belgium, France, Great Britain, India, Israel, the Netherlands, Serbia, Switzerland, Turkey and Romania, too presented about 60 papers.

The first day of the conference brought to the attention of the participants an event with an important international impact: **The EFQM Open Doors Day in Romania**, organized by **SRAC** and **EFQM** and with the participation of Grundfos Romania and the Hungarian Association for Excellence.

The CCF 2014 conference was organized in a special year for quality: the anniversary of nine decades from the first control chart introduced by the quality guru Walter Shewhart in 1924, which launched the statistical process control and the quality improvement. This moment, considered as the birthday of the modern quality, was the point of departure of an interesting CCF debate concerning the evolutions and the future of quality.

The previous conferences in quality, reliability and maintainability organised in Romania in the last three decades have contributed to the promotion in our country of new ideas and methods in quality and dependability.

We are sure that CCF 2016 will constitute a new qualitative step in this process.

Quality and dependability have become today undeniable strengths contributing to the development of companies, small businesses or large multinational groups. Their application in different organisations must be the result of research and partnership among industry, academia and business. This conference can contribute to the dialogue between the main actors of the quality and dependability world.

The points of view of well-known specialists in the field from Romania and several other countries will allow to establish a realistic image of the national and international evolutions and of the perspectives of these modern fields.

The dynamic political and economic evolutions in Europe during the last decades increased the importance of **quality**, now considered as a strategic tool and a determining factor for the development and enhancement of Europe's global competitiveness.

The new EU's Framework Programme for Research and Technological Development – FP7 and the forthcoming one – FP8, can be considered as a major tools to support the creation of the European Research Area (ERA). The main topics of FP7 and FP8 and some representative projects, especially those in quality and safety/security fields will be analysed in the frame of this conference.

The international scientific meetings, such as CCF 2016 is, could be a contribution to this objective, by reviewing the state of the art, experiences, and new trends in the relevant scientific areas.

Several presentation of CCF 2016 will be dedicated to the evolutions in the European quality on the European scene during these last years, as well as to the national evolutions in this field. The real integration of Romanian economy in the unified European structures is an impossible endeavour unless the severe requirements on quality based on the EU's standards are meet.

Several organisational, research and educational programs and initiatives in the quality and dependability (esp. safety/security) field were developed in Romania in the last years, and they will be certainly analysed in the framework of this conference.

Under the conditions of the actual world economic crisis, the debates of CCF 2016 will try to give an answer to the following question: could be the optimal managerial and technical strategies based on quality and dependability an advantage for companies in their effort to overcome this economic crisis?

We are honoured by the participation in the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability – CCF 2016 of well-known specialists in the field – academics, managers, practitioners and researchers from France, Israel, Serbia, Switzerland, U.S.A., and Romania, too. Their points of view, presented in about 50 papers will be of great interest to the participants at CCF 2016.

Among the topics proposed to the specialists by the International Scientific Committee during the 15th International Conference in Quality and Dependability *CCF 2016*, we could mention the following ones:

	Į	■ Systems	of	Management:	developments,	evolution,	standardisation	(ISO	9000,	ISO
--	---	------------------	----	-------------	---------------	------------	-----------------	------	-------	-----

14000, ISO2200, ISO 27000, OHSAS 18001 a.o.);
Quality management – the new standard ISO 9001:2015: perspectives, requirements;
New approaches: social accountability management (SA8000) and ethics management;
Integrated Systems of Management;
Service quality management (education, health care, tourism, banking system, etc.) and
evaluation of customer satisfaction;
Business Continuity Management (BCM)
Accreditation (certification bodies, laboratories, personnel) and certification (quality
systems, products and services);
Voluntary product certification;
Total Quality Management, Six Sigma, quality management tools;
Modern control and conformity assessment techniques;
Conformity assessment in the mandatory area;
Modern approaches in dependability, resilience and evolvability;
Reliability (mathematical tools; design; predictive, experimental and operational reliability; reliability of human factor);
Maintainability (maintenance management, preventive and corrective maintenance
techniques, RCM)
Education and training in quality and dependability.
Computer-aided study in quality and dependability
Quality, reliability and security in the IT&C industry
Legislation and standardization in quality and dependability
Social, juridical and economical implications of quality and dependability.

The special guests of the 15th International Conference in Quality and Dependability **CCF 2016** will be important international experts in the field, namely:

Prof. Emeritus Dr. Alessandro Birolini from Polytechnic Institute (ETH) Zurich, Switzerland, a famous European "Guru" in Reliability, author of the best-seller Reliability Engineering, a true "Reliability bible" – printed in 10 editions; the Chinese edition of this book, which will be published in 2017 will be introduced in the frame of this conference;

Dr. **Isaac Sheps** – Convener of ISO/TC 176/SC2/WG25 (working group for revision of the ISO 9004);

Prof. Dr. Vidosav D. Majstorovic from University of Belgrad, well-known Serbian expert in quality management;

Dr. **Steli Loznen**, Israel – Convener of IEC/TC 62/SC 62A/MT29 & WG14 (working group for preparing the international standards for medical electrical equipment used in medical practice).

Special emphasis will be given during CCF 2016 to the problems of Quality, Security and Risk Management and Analysis, Dependability Modelling and Evaluation, Environmental Management and Quality Assurance in Education. Sessions with these topics are included in the program of the conference.

A special attention will be given in the frame of CCF 2016 to the requirements and implementation of the revised standard ISO 9001:2015. As a result of an intensive work of the ISO TC 176, the revised standard ISO 9001:2015 was released in September 2015. This moment was considered by several experts in the field as "beginning of a new era development of quality management systems". If expectations concerning the revised standard ISO 9001came true — one year after its launch — and the problems it poses for companies implementing this standard will be major issues to be addressed in the frame of CCF 2016.

Companies' management must provide the necessary resources and are required to prove the competence of their quality specialist staff. The revisions of ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 as well as the new occupational health and safety standard ISO 45001, introduced a range of new features. Therefore, organizations should start dealing with these topics right now. These issues will be discussed in several papers presented at the conference, as well as in the roundtable on the "Economic impacts of certification".

A wide selection of papers presented in the frame of CCF 2016 will be included in the **Proceedings** of the conference, entitled "Quality and Dependability".

Some representative papers presented during CCF 2016 are included in this special issue of the journal "Asigurarea Calitatii – Quality Assurance" dedicated to the 15th International Conference in Quality and Dependability, too.

Finally, we would like to thank all the authors who submitted their work, the members of the organising committee, and all those who contributed to the Conference with their efforts and support.

Special thanks to the members of the International Scientific Committee of CCF 2016, prestigious personalities in the field from 10 countries, who made up an equilibrated and high-level scientific program for CCF 2016 and reviewed the submitted papers under severe time constraints; their names are mentioned in these Proceedings.

We hope that the 15th International Conference in Quality and Dependability – CCF 2016, organised in a beautiful area of the Carpathians Mountains, at Sinaia, will be a both stimulating and enjoyable forum in which to share current results and trends in quality and dependability.

We invite you to enjoy the presentations, panels, the technical and tourist visits over the three days of this conference and to participate to the fullest this international event gets underway.

Dr. Dan G. STOICHIŢOIU General Chairman of CCF 2016 Prof. dr. Ioan C. BACIVAROV Chairman of the International Scientific Committee of CCF 2016

Contents

Moving from Product Quality to Organization Quality to Achieve Sustained Success of an Organization. The Future of ISO 9004 Isaac SHEPS	17
isaac shers	1 /
The integrated index of business standardization – Research and Development Vidosav D. MAJSTOROVIĆ, Abuajila M. S RAWENI, Nuri Mohamed Saad ALGHERIANI	22
Standardul ISO 9001:2015, punct și de la capăt! J.M. Juran și versiunea 2015 a lui ISO 9001 Firică POPA	29
Product Safety Needs a Horizontal Testing Standard? Steli LOZNEN	34
Risk approach in an integrated quality-environment management system Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN, Călin Vasile NEAMŢU	49
Global Harmonization of MED standards Steli LOZNEN	53
mHealth and consumer electronics Steli LOZNEN	70
European Quality Assurance in Education and Romania's Position within the European Higher Education Area (EHEA) Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU	96
Quality in Education Through Quality Management of Informational Flows Remus CHINĂ	107
Who is afraid of quality in education? Manuela STOICA	114
A Decade of Quality Assurance of Education in Romania – Which are its Outcomes? Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU, Remus CHINĂ	116

PDCA cycle for school activities of pupils Georgeta BUCŞAN	126
Risk Management of Technical Systems Alessandro BIROLINI	130
A Graph Driven Approach to Data Loss Prevention Michael BEST	138
A System Architecture for Monitoring the Reliability of IoT Radu BONCEA, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	143
Migration of a SOC to SIC (Security Operations Center vs. Security Intelligence Center) The use of Honeypots for Threat Intelligence Ionuț-Daniel BARBU, Cristian PASCARIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	150
Cloud for Europe Project: New Solutions for Addressing Cloud Security Issues Radu BONCEA, Carmen Elena CÎRNU	156
Secure Smart Cities Cristian PASCARIU, Ionuț-Daniel BARBU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	161
Online Platform for Reliability Data Processing Angelica BACIVAROV, Ioan C. BACIVAROV, Mihai PAULIŞ	167
A Reliable Architecture for a Massive and Continuous Scanner of Web Vulnerabilities in Internet Eugenie STĂICUŢ, Radu BONCEA, Carmen ROTUNĂ	176
Maintenance Dependence Modeling with Gaussian Copulas Adrian Stere PARIS, Dana SYLVAN, Constantin TÂRCOLEA	181
Certification of Quality Management Systems in Media Industry David BALME	185
Kaizen: Concepts and Misinterpretations Jun NAKAMURO	191
Physical and Logical Security Risk Assessment Procedure for SMEs, according to ISO/IEC 27005:2011 and SR ISO 31000:2010 Standards Marian FIROIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	194
L'utilisation du logiciel Statistica dans le domaine du contrôle qualité Marouane OUBAIABRA	207
Analytic Study on Cyber-Attacks Structure Ioan-Cosmin MIHAI, Ioan BACIVAROV	211
On the Ensuring the Resilience in Communication Networks Doring Luminita COPACL Angelica BACIVAROV	218

Using Digital Signature to Ensure Information Security Gabriel PETRICĂ, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	225
VoIP – Nowadays Gateway for a Better Unified Communication Cătălina GHERGHINA, Angelica BACIVAROV	233
Maintenance Testing of a Software Product Sabina-Daniela AXINTE, Ioan C. BACIVAROV	237
On Physical and Logical Security Risks Management in the Context of Convergent Security Marian FIROIU, Ioan BACIVAROV	244
Process approach of the quality-environment management system according to ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN	254
Employee engagement – the key ingredient of business success. Human nature impact on business Petrişor GAGIU	258
Calculating Overall Equipment Efficiency for Management Decision Alexandru GIURA	266
Six Sigma Tools and the Eight Key to Risk Management Marius FLORESCU	276
Identification, Monitoring and Treatment of Risks in defense against floods; participation in coordinating the management of emergency situations arising from floods, hazardous weather, accidents at hydrotechnical structures and accidental pollution (according to SR EN ISO 9001:2008, SR EN ISO 14001:2005 and Ord. SGG 400/2015) Iulia VINTILOIU	279
Managerial Approach of Occupational Safety and Health According to ISO 45001 in the Health Care Sector Steluta Elisabeta NISIPEANU, Ruxandra CHIURTU, Doru Costin DARABONT	283
Napoleon the 1st' leadership Bogdan VISSARION, Cătălina ȚUȚULEA	289
Certification – impulse of the profitable business Luigi ENE, Cătălina ȚUȚULEA	295
Food deceptions -standards, legislation and practice Cornelia ŞULEA	300
Reflections on the approach of the audit of risks and opportunities, seen through the perspective of the requirements of the new editions of the management systems standards Cristian RONCEA	307

313
323
332
334
346

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 17-21

Moving from Product Quality to Organization Quality to Achieve Sustained Success of an Organization The Future of ISO 9004

Isaac SHEPS

Isaac.sheps@gmail.com

Abstract

The success factors of organizations are developing continuously and every few year's new success factors are added to the complex demanding and ever-changing competitive environment in which organizations operate. There is no doubt that the primary focus of an organization should be to achieve higher satisfaction of its customers by implementing rigorous processes to continuously improve its products and services quality - but in the current competitive environment this is not enough to achieve sustained success. Organizations have to move from Product Quality to the next level of Organization Quality by implementing an effective and efficient management system that is led by top management and is focused on the organization ability to meet the needs and expectations of its customers and other relevant interested parties, over the long term as the way to achieve sustained success of the organization. The new version of ISO 9004 planned to be published in 2018 will provide a guidance to organizations to achieve sustained success.

- 1) ISO- 9000 : 2015. 2) ISO 9001 : 2015. 3) ISO 9004 : 2009.
- 4) JIS Q 9005: 2005 Quality Management Systems Guidelines for Sustainable Growth.
- 5) Sheps I. "QMS in Future- ISO TC 176 Perspective", Proceedings of Fourth International Working ConferenceTQM Advanced and Intelligent Approaches", Belgrade (Serbia) 2007 and Proceedings of the 15th Industrial Engineering and Management Conference, Tel-Aviv, 2008.
- 6) Sheps I. and Zonneshain A. "Design for Sustainability The Challenge for Systems Engineering", Proceedings of 18th Annual International INCOSE Symposium, 15-19 June 2008, Utrecht, The Nederland's.
- 7) Sheps I. "From Product Quality to Organization Quality, Proceedings of 22nd. Annual ASQ Quality Management Conference, 4-5 March 2010, New Orleans, USA.
- 8) Sheps I. "The Future of ISO 9001 Quality Systems Management Requirements", Proceedings of International Convention on Quality JUSK 2010, 31st May 3rd June 2010, Belgrade, Serbia.
- 9) Sheps I. "Is there a need to change the 8 Quality Management Principles?", Proceedings og International Quality Conference, Nov. 2011, Jerusalem, Israel.
- 10) West John E. and Ciafrani Charles A., Unlocking the Power of Your QMS Keys to Performance Improvement, ASQ Quality Press, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, USA, 2004.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 22-28

The integrated index of business standardization - Research and Development

Vidosav D. MAJSTOROVIC, Abuajila M. S RAWENI, Nuri Mohamed Saad ALGHERIANI

University of Belgrade, Faculty of Mechanical Engineering, Belgrade University, Belgrade, Serbia;

Abstract

Business standardization developed intensely in the second decade of the 21st century. In the end 2014 (31st of December) there were: (i) 1609294 certificates to ISO 9001, 13485, 14001, 16949, 22000, 27001, 50001 and 22301 in the world, whereby 1138155 certificates were to ISO 9001, and 324148 were to ISO 14001. Total number of standardized management systems (SMS) that is being followed by a certificate is eight and the last to be monitored is ISO 22301 Business Continuity Management. Our research in this paper refers to the definition and determination of the index of business standardization. This parameter can be determined for one or more SMS, at the level of the world, continent, region or country are. This is a qualitative analysis of the application of SMS. This index has three elements, namely: (a) number of certificates per thousand inhabitants, (b) number of certificates contribution to "creating" hundreds of thousands of euros GNP, and (c) number of certificates per GNP inhabitants. Finally the integrated index of business standardization (IIBS) is multiplication of these parameters. The paper presents an analysis of this index of the World and EU.

Keywords: Business Standardization, Index, analysis

- [1]. MAJSTOROVIĆ, V., et al. ISO 9001: 2015-An Example of Application in Serbia, ASIGURAREA CALITĂŢII QUALITY ASSURANCE (2015).
- [2] http://www.aimglobal.org/?page=ISO standards (Accessed June 2016).
- [3] http://www.iso.org/iso/private standards.pdf (Accessed June 2016).
- [4] [http://www.iso.org/iso/home/standards/certification/isosurvey.htm?certificate=ISO%209001&countrycode=AF (Accessed February 2016).
- [5] Fiorezo francschini new research. A new forecasting model for the diffusion of ISO 9000 standard certifications in European countries, Emerald Insight, Volume 21, 32-50.
- [6] http://file:///C:/Users/win10/Downloads/SSRN-id2134575.pdf (Accessed June 2016).
- [7] Sampaio P., A CASE STUDY APPROACH TO THE ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ISO 9001 CERTIFICATION, International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management, Vol. 28 Iss: 9, pp. 929-950.
- [8] Sampaio P., ISO 9001 certification research: question, answers and approaches, Emerald Insight, Volume 26 Nov 1, 2009, pp 38-58.
- [9] www.iso.org. (Accessed June 2016).
- [10] http://statisticstimes.com/economy/european-countries-by-gdp. php (Accessed June 2016).

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 29-33

Standardul ISO 9001:2015, punct și de la capăt! J.M. Juran și versiunea 2015 a lui ISO 9001

Firică POPA

SRAC CERT, România firica popa@yahoo.com

Abstract

La sfârșitul anului 2015 a fost publicat ISO 9001 - Sisteme de management. Cerințe, unul dintre cele mai cunoscute și utilizate standarde din lume. În baza experienței de peste 16 ani ca utilizator al standardului ISO 9001 și 10 ani auditor șef sisteme de management, autorul face o analiză a problemelor care au apărut la implementarea, aplicarea și auditul sistemelor de management al calității, precum și a schimbărilor introduse în noua ediție a ISO 9001.

Keywords: ISO 9001:2015, cerințe, proces, managementul calității, asigurarea calității, abordare bazată pe proces, bucla de feedback a procesului, PDCA

- [1] *** ISO 9001:2015, Sisteme de management ale calității. Cerințe.
- [2] *** ISO 9001:2000, Sisteme de management ale calității. Cerințe.
- [3] *** ISO 9001:2008, Sisteme de management ale calității. Cerințe.
- [4] *** ISO 9001:1994, Model pentru asigurarea calității în proiectare, dezvoltare, producție, montaj și service.
- [5] *** SR ISO 31000:2010, Managementul riscului. Principii si linii directoare.
- [6] Firică Popa, Calitatea, fără început, fără sfârșit, Manualul auditorului și Aplicarea Juran în Sistemele de Management, accesibil la www.firica-popa.ro.
- [7] Firică Popa (2002), Calitatea-acces la succes, Vol. 3, Nr. 4.
- [8] Firică Popa (2003), Calitatea-acces la succes, Vol. 4, Nr. 1, 2.
- [9] Firică Popa (2005), Calitatea-acces la succes, Vol. 6, Nr. 10, 11, 12.
- [10] Firică Popa (2007), Calitatea-acces la succes, Vol. 8, Nr. 7, 8.
- [11] Firică Popa (2014), Calitatea-acces la succes, Vol. 15, Nr. 141.
- [12] Joseph M. Juran (2006), Manualul Calității Juran, Ediția V, SRAC, București.
- [13] Joseph M. Juran (2000), Planificarea Calității, Editura Teora, București.
- [14] Firică Popa (2004), Ghid pentru îmbunătățirea performanței, Editura Mediarex, București.
- [15] Firică Popa (2006), Trasabilitatea în management, Conferința CCF, Sinaia.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 49-52

Risk approach in an integrated qualityenvironment management system

Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN, Călin Vasile NEAMŢU

Birou Managementul Calitatii, Compania Apa Brasov, Romania; Director Productie, Compania de Apa Someş SA Cluj Napoca, Romania danielamoldovan@apabrasov.ro, calin.neamtu@casomes.ro

Abstract

The primordial role in maintaining the integrated quality-environment management system and for the transition to the new ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 standards is the thinking approach based on risk assessment in every stage of the activities/processes. Starting from the premise that there is no economic and/ or social activity without ecological implications, it is necessary for every organization to have management means, planning, organization and a strategic risk approach that is based on techniques and devices for environment protection, promoting the concept of continuous development. Understanding this concept, in compliance with respecting the environment, we will be able to maintain the legacy for the wellbeing of the future generations. This paper presents aspects regarding the improvement of integrated quality-management systems by implementing the risk management process, and the way in which the risk management is done (identification, evaluation, control) in an institution, helping to understand the possible risks a company may be confronted with, in order for these risks to be correctly managed.

Keywords: quality management, environment management, performance, environmental aspect, environmental impact, integration, risk.

- [1] SR EN ISO 9001:2015 Sisteme de management al calității. Cerințe, ASRO, sept.2015
- [2] SR EN ISO 14001:2015 Sisteme de management de mediu. Cerinte cu ghid de utilizare, ASRO, nov.2015
- [3] ISO 31000:2009, Managementul riscului, Principii si linii directoare.
- [4] Procedura de Managementul riscului, Daniela Moldovan, Compania Apa Brasov, 2016.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 96-106

European Quality Assurance in Education and Romania's Position within the European Higher Education Area (EHEA)

Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU

University Polytechnics of Bucharest, Romania

Abstract

The Bologna Declaration - adopted in 1999 by the education ministers of the EC Member States - has encouraged European cooperation in the field of Quality assurance in Higher education, mainly aiming to develop comparable and compatible criteria and methodologies for assessment. EHEA (European Higher Education Area) was invented, drafted and started to be implemented in order to offer some perspectives of progress to European universities, respecting both national diversity and the principles of university autonomy. But EHEA is barely an early stage and further development of it demands new efforts to eliminate existing barriers and to develop a favorable framework in order to promote higher education policies which have to be consistent and adequate to all requirements, both nationally and at European level. Within this process, internal and external assurance quality of higher education can be a catalyst since its purpose is to generate, consolidate and develop the confidence/ trust of all stakeholders in the capability of universities to satisfy all stakeholders' requirements. In spite of the fact that, currently, all the EHEA Member States have already established their own systems of external quality assurance, many researches have found multiple differences especially regarding philosophy, policies and strategies to address internal quality assurance within universities. This paper refers to progresses made in developing both internal and external quality assurance within the EHEA, focusing on features that are approaching or differentiating the Romanian approach in respect to international references and national requirements.

Keywords: higher education, quality assurance in education, internal quality assurance of education, referentials

- [1] Apple, M. W. (2005) Education, markets, and an audit culture. Critical Quarterly, 47(1-2), 11-29
- [2] ARACIS (2013) Self-Evaluation Report (for renewal of its membership within ENQA) , Bucharest, 2013 http://www.aracis.ro/fileadmin/ARACIS/Informatii publice/SER 2013.pdf
- [3] Ball, S. J. (2003). The teacher's soul and the terrors of performativity. Journal of Education Policy, 18(2), 215-228
- [4] Brennan, J.&Shah, T (2000) Quality assessment and institutional change. Experiences from 14 countries. Higher Education, 40(3), 331-349
- [5] China,R. (2012) Improving the quality of pre-university education based on the ISO 9001 Standard and the EFQM Excellence Model, Doctoral Thesis, University of Bucharest, 2012, Bucharest

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 96-106

- [6] Dragulanescu, N., China,R, Colceag,F., Militaru,C. (2013) "Asigurarea calității educației o abordare proactivă" ("Quality Assurance in Education a Proactive Approach"), Editura Standardizarea, 2013, București
- [7] Dragulanescu, N., Stoica, M., China, R.(2013) Quality Assurance in Education Systems of South Eastern Europe Necessity or "Ballast"?, 7th International Working Conference, TOTAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT ADVANCED AND INTELLIGENT APPROACHES, 4th-7th of June, 2013, Belgrade, Serbia
- [8] Dragulanescu, N., China, R. (2011) The misleading approach of <Quality Assurance> concept in Education, 6th International Working Conference ,,TOTAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT ADVANCED AND INTELLIGENT APPROACHES, 7th-11th of June, 2011, Belgrade, Serbia
- [9] Dragulanescu, N., China, R. (2010) Quality Assurance in Education from the European Project to the Romanian Outcome, Workshop of Romanian Society for Quality Assurance, SRAC, September 2010
- [10] Dragulanescu, N., China, R. (2010) "Oportune Corrective Actions and Corrections of Current Romanian Approach of Quality Assurance in Education", Journal <Quality access to success>, Romanian Society for Quality Assurance, SRAC, no.4, 5, 6, 7, 8/2010
- [11] Dragulanescu, N., China, R. (2010) Quality Assurance of Education in Romania Proposals aiming to increase its credibility, effectiveness and efficiency Journal < OPTIMUM Q>, Romanian Foundation for Quality Promotion, FRPC, no.1/2010
- [12] Dragulanescu, N. (2009) Quality Assurance in Education Slogans, Myths and Good Practices, 5th International Working Conference "Total Quality Management", 1st- 4th June, 2009, Belgrade, Serbia
- [13] Dragulanescu, N. (2007) Obstacles To Implementing Quality Management In Romanian Higher Education, 7th International Conference of the Central and Eastern European Countries "National Quality Programs and National Quality Awards The Way to a Better Life" Iasi, 5th-6th of December, Romania, 2007
- [14] Eggins, H. (Ed.) (2014) Drivers and Barriers to Achieving Quality in Higher Education, Sense Publishers, Rotterdam
- [15] ENQA Standards and Guidelines for Quality Assurance in the European Higher Education Area, European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education, 2005, 2015, Helsinki, Finland
- [16] ENQA + CNE Références et lignes directrices pour le management de la qualité dans l'espace européen de l'enseignement supérieur (translation in French of ENQA document Standards and Guidelines for Quality Assurance in the European Higher Education Area}, January 2006, Paris, France
- [17] EUA European Universities Association (Andrea Blättler, Lucien Bollaert, Fiona Crozier, Josep Grifoll, Áine Hyland, Tia Loukkola, Barbara Michalk, Allan Päll and Bjørn Stensaker) (2010) Building bridges: Making sense of quality assurance in European, national and institutional contexts, A selection of papers from the 5th European Quality Assurance Forum, 18-20. November 2010, Hosted by University Claude Bernard Lyon 1, France
- [18] Geven, K., Maricut, A. "Forms in Search of Substance: Quality and Evaluation in Romanian Universities", BP Researchers Conference, Bucharest, 24-26.11.2014
- [19] Geven, K., Sârbu.O., Santa,R., Adina Maricuţ,A., Sabic, N. (2015) Why Do Romanian Universities Fail to Internalize Quality Assurance? (in: Adrian Curaj, Ligia Deca, Eva Egron-Polak, Jamil Salmi Editors Higher Education Reforms in Romania, Between the Bologna Process and National Challenges, 43-62, Springer Verlag, 2015)
- [20] Gorga, A. "Quality games in higher education; the cases of Romania and Switzerland", BP Researchers Conference, Bucharest, 24-26.11.2014

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 96-106

- [21] Harvey, Lee, Williams, J. (2010) Fifteen Years of Quality in Higher Education, 2 Parts (review of the papers published in Quality in Higher Education, from its inception in 1995 to 2010), Quality in Higher Education, Volume 16, Issue 2
- [22] Harvey, Lee (2010) Twenty years of trying to make sense of QA: the misalignment of QA with institutional quality frameworks and quality culture, http://www.eua.be/Libraries/eqaf-2010/WGSII 7 Papers Harvey.pdf?sfvrsn=0
- [23] Kopstein, J. (2003) Post communist democracy: Legacies and outcomes. Comparative Politics, 35 (2) (January 1), 231-250
- [24] Păunescu, M., Florian, B., & Hâncean, G.-M. (2012) Internalizing quality assurance in higher education: Challenges of transition in enhancing the institutional responsibility for quality. In A. Curaj, P. Scott, L. Vlasceanu, & L. Wilson (Eds.), European higher education at the crossroads (pp. 317-337). Dordrecht: Springer Netherlands
- [25] Păunescu, M., Vlăsceanu, L., & Miroiu, A. (Eds.). (2011) Calitatea învățământului superior din România. O Analiză instituțională a tendințelor actuale (The Quality of romanian higher education. An institutionalist analysis on current trends). Iași, Ed.Polirom
- [26] Reisz, Mathew Europe is told to relearn the ABCs of quality assurance, 2010, http://www.timeshighereducation.co.uk/story.asp?storyCode=41 4364§ioncode=26
- [27] SAR Romanian Academic Society (2013) Quality assurance in basic education in South Eastern Europe, What works in our region (Report, in English), Bucharest, January 2013 + Policy Brief #62 The Romanian quality assurance system in pre-university education Can we change forms without substance? (leaflet, in Romanian), Bucharest, January 2013, SAR, www.sar.org.ro
- [28] Stoica, M. (2012) Assessment of quality of pre-university education. Dynamics and perspectives. A comparative study, Doctoral Thesis, University of Bucharest, 2012
- [29] Tomusk, V.(2004) -The open world and closed societies. Essays on higher education policies in transition. New York: Palgrave Macmillan
- [30] Vlăsceanu, L., Hâncean, M.-G., Voicu B. & Tufis, C. (2010) Statistical distributions, interpretations and options. The state of quality in the Romanian higher education. Quality Barometer 2009, Bucuresti, ARACIS
- [31] Vlăsceanu, L., Miroiu, A., Păunescu, M., & Hâncean, M.-G. (Ed.) (2011) Barometrul calității 2010. Starea calității în învățământul superior din România (The Barometer on Quality 2010. The State of Quality in Romanian Higher Education). Brașov: Editura Universității Transilvania.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 107-113

Quality in Education through Quality Management of Informational Flows (Case study: pre - university education system)

Remus CHINĂ

Universitatea Creștină "Dimitrie Cantemir", București

Abstract

The unprecedented technological development we are witnessing the last two decades - especially in the field of information science and technology - has generated a major challenge for the educational system in the area of information flows management within the system. The effective management of information flows is, in the field of education also, an important enabling factor which can immensely influence the quality in education (i.e. the quality within the education system). Within the current configuration of the Romanian educational system, the relevant information flows are running vertically, top-down, from the "top" of the system towards its "base" (including the educational entities), through various information "filters", but they are also running bottom-up, from the system "base" towards the system "top". The quality and the accuracy of these information flows are representing essential "components" for the operation of educational entities included within the system. In this paper, are trying to emphasize the importance of information flows transmitted within the educational system and the need to implement a quality management system of informational processes and their information flows.

Keywords: system, education, quality, management, informational fluxes

- 1. ASQ American Society for Quality , : http://asq.org/learnabout- quality/quality-assurance-quality-control
- 2. The Glossary of Education Reform, http://edglossary.org/education-system
- 3. Circuite şi fluxuri informaţionale, http://www.rasfoiesc.com/business/afaceri/birotica/CIRCUITE -SI-FLUXURI-INFORMATIO43.php
- 4. Chină, R. Îmbunătățirea calității educației în învățământul preuniversitar pe baza Referențialului ISO si a Modelului de Excelentă al EFOM (teză de doctorat). (2015). Editura Universitară, Bucuresti
- 5. Chină, R Managementul calității în învățământul preuniversitar: referențiale, modele, tehnici, instrumente. (2015). Editura Universitară București
- 6. Ziad, M.S., Management Information Systems and their role in Total Quality Management, http://journalarchieves35. webs.com/757-776.pdf
- 7. Interview with Larry English, Creator of TIQM, http://dataqualitypro.com/data-quality-pro-blog/larry-englishinformation- quality-applied-interview
- 8. Total Information Quality Management Handbook, http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=33001C IOH.pdf
- 9. PDCA Cycle, http://asq.org/learn-about-quality/projectplanning- tools/overview/pdca-cycle.html

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 107-113

- 10. Drăgulănescu, NG., Chină, R. și alții. 2014. Asigurarea calității educației o abordare proactivă. 2014. Editura Standardizarea, București
- 11. TQM -Total Quality Management Managementul Total al Calității, sursa: http://asq.org/learn-about-quality/total-qualitymanagement/ overview/overview.html
- 12. Chină, R. Calitate în educație versus calitatea educației. Aspecte privind managementul calității la nivelul sistemului educațional și al organizației școlare. Revista "Calitatea Acces la succes", Vol.15, nr. 139, 140 2014
- 13. Chină, R. Calitatea educației între realitățile sistemului educațional și managementul proceselor (în cartea: Simona Sava (coordonator). Perspective pentru cercetarea în educație, Editura Universitară, București, 2015, p 319, Cod:180, pag. 44-57
- 14. Chină, R. Calitatea în educație factori determinanți, procese, management. Actis Conference Educationis Scientiae (Collectivevolume, Conference Proceedings), Aardvark Global Publishing, POBox 901930, Sandy, Utah 84090, USA, 2014
- 15. Chină, R. Quality in education key factors, processes, management. CCF 2012, Proceedings of the 13th International Conference Quality And Dependability
- 16. Juran, J.M. 1998 (fifth edition). Quality Control Handbook. McGraw-Hill, http://www.pqmonline.com/assets/files/lib/books/juran.pdf
- 17. Cojocaru, I., Guzun, M. Sistemul de management al securității informaționale ISO/IEC 27001:2013. Agoritmul de implementare.http://idsi.md/files/25_Cojocaru_Sistemul_de_m anagement al securitatii informationale.pdf
- 18. Țigănoaia, B., Purcărea, A.A. Information Security Management Systems Certification Research In The Romanian Organizations. 2015.http://www.scientificbulletin.upb.ro/rev_docs_arhiva/full a82 311118.pdf
- 19. The new versions of ISO/IEC 27001 and 27002 are now International Standards, http://www.gammassl.co.uk/27001/revision.php
- 20. Raport asupra fluxurilor informaționale ce provesc sistemul de învățământ suprior din România, http://uefiscdi.gov.ro/

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 114-115

Who is afraid of quality in education?

Manuela STOICA

Grup Şcolar Industrial "Toma N. Socolescu" Ploiești, Prahova

- [1] Carillo, Francisco Javier. "Knowledge Cities: Approaches, Experiences and Perspectives", Butterworth-Heinemann, 2006
- [2] Drăgulănescu, Nicolae "De la calitatea controlată la calitatea totală", Ed. Alternative, București, 1996
- [3] Legea nr. 87/2006, pentru aprobarea O.U.G. nr. 75/2005, privind asigurarea calității educației, publicată în M.O., Partea I, nr. 334/13.04.2006

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 116-125

A Decade of Quality Assurance of Education in Romania - Which are its Outcomes?

Nicolae George DRĂGULĂNESCU, Remus CHINĂ

Universitatea Politehnica București; Universitatea Creștină "Dimitrie Cantemir", București

Abstract

Year 2005 was the "starting point" of implementing an important step within the Romanian education system - the Quality Assurance of Education. Such an approach should have been an outstanding opportunity for the entire Romanian education system to enter a trajectory of better performances, comparable to those achieved by other university/ school systems, considered to be effective and efficient in some advanced countries. Ten years experience of approaching Quality Assurance of Education is, in our view, a relevant time interval in order to highlight some specific elements of a quality culture and to make their presence felt in the operation and development of each entity (school, high-school/ college / university, etc.) belonging to Romanian educational system. In this paper, authors assessed and analyzed the outcomes of the Romanian approach of Quality Assurance of Education in order to establish if this experiment was in Romania a success story or a failure. Were these outcomes of Quality Assurance of Education, during this decade, really beneficial for Romania's educational system or the considerable amount of spent financial resources (mostly reimbursable credits) has been irremediably lost?

Keywords: educational system, quality management, quality assurance, process, quality

- 1. ***OUG nr. 75/2005 pentru asigurarea calității educației, cu modificările și completările ulterioare
- 2. *** HG nr. 21/2007 pentru aprobarea standardelor de autorizare/acreditare (în învățământul preuniversitar;
- 3. ***HG nr. 22/2007 pentru aprobarea metodologiei de evaluare a școlilor în vedere autorizării acreditării
- 4. *** HG nr. 1534/2007 pentru aprobarea standardelor de referință (înv. preuniversitar)
- 5. ***HG nr. 961/2009 pentru aprobarea ghidului de elaborare a standardelor minimale în entitățile publice
- 6. *** ASRO -Asociatia Română de Standardizare, http://www.cciail.ro/asro2.php
- 7. *** ARACIP Agenția Română de Asigurare a Calității în Învățământul Preuniversitar, www.edu.ro
- 8. *** ARACIS Agenția Română de Asigurare a Calității în Învățământul Superior, http://www.aracis.ro/
- 9. *** ASQ -American Society for Quality , : http://asq.org/learnabout- quality/quality-assurance-quality-control
- 10. Chină, R. (2015) Managementul Calității în Învățământul Preuniversitar. Editura Universitară București
- 11. Drăgulănescu, NG., Chină, R. și alții. 2014. Asigurarea calității educației o abordare proactivă. 2014. Editura Standardizarea, București

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 116-125

- 12. Juran, J.M. 1998 (fifth edition). Quality Control Handbook. McGraw-Hill, http://www.pqmonline.com/assets/files/lib/books/juran.pdf
- 13. TQM -Total Quality Management Managementul Total al Calității, sursa: http://asq.org/learn-about-quality/total-qualitymanagement/ overview/overview.html
- 14. Geert Hofstede, https://www.geert-hofstede.com/ şi https://geert-hofstede.com/romania.html
- 15. SAR Societatea Academică Română SAR http://sar.org.ro/asigurarea-calitatii-in-invatamantulpreuniversitar- este-blocata-in-proceduri/
- 16. Drăgulănescu, N., Chină, R. Acțiuni corective și corecții oportune în actuala abordare a asigurării calității educației. Revista "Calitatea Acces la succes", nr. (4), (6), (8) (10), 2010, ISSN:1582-2559, indexată SCOPUS, EBSCO, PROQUEST and CABELL"S; cod CNCSIS: 688;
- 17. Drăgulănescu, N., Chină, R. Asigurarea calității educației în România propuneri privind creșterea substanțială a credibilității, eficacității și eficienței demersului. Revista "Optimum Q", vol. 1, nr. 1/2010, pag. 1-24, ISSN: 1220- 6598;
- 18. Drăgulănescu, N., Chină, R. Perspectives of quality assurance in romanian educational system, within the EU 2020 Strategy context, Galați University Press, ISBN: 978-6060-8348-82-7 cod CNCSIS 281;
- 19. Drăgulănescu, N., Chină, R. Asigurarea calității în educație de la proiectul european la rezultatul românesc, CCF 2012, Proceedings of the 13th International Conference Quality And Dependability, Neptun, 2012, ISSN: 1842-3566;
- 20. Chină, R., Drăgulănescu, N., Stoica, M. Quality Assurance In Education Systems Of South Eastern Europe -Necessity Or "Ballast"? The 7th International Working Conference "Total Quality Management Advanced and Intelligent, Approaches", 3rd 7th June, 2013, Belgrade, Serbia, ISBN:978-86-7083-791-1, COBISS.SR-ID 198576396

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 126-129

PDCA cycle for school activities of pupils

Georgeta BUCŞAN

Micron TQM S.R.L., Bucharest, Romania microntqm@yahoo.com

Abstract

The paper presents the results obtained during the educational program "I can also get good grades!" organized along two years by "Prof. Coman" Foundation and sponsored by SRAC, addressed to pupils of the 7th grade from "Radu Greceanu" Highschool from Slatina, Olt. The pupils learned how to work in a team, how to value their scholar activity and how to use the PDCA cycle for their educational activities, both at school and at home.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 130-137

Risk Management of Technical Systems

Alessandro BIROLINI

ETH Zürich, Firenze

Abstract

Besides natural accident/disasters, like earthquakes or floods, to which humankind is often inevitably and dramatically exposed, questions on risk and risk management practically arise in all human activities, at different degree and in a more or less objective form. After a short introduction to the concepts of safety, risk, risk acceptance, and risk management, this contribution focuses on risk management related to repairable equipment & systems for which external influences (human or other) are important, with particular attention to new models for risk analysis, and by introducing the concept of mean time to accident /disaster (MTTA). Not considered is risk & risk management in climate, health and financial fields, as well as in relation to project management, security, sociological & ethical aspects; for all these one can refer to [21, 24, 8], as well as [13, 14, 10, 16, 17, 19, 20, 22]. This contribution is an invited paper at CCF-2016, based on [5].

Keywords: Risk, Safety, Security, System, Management, Risk Acceptance, Technical System, CCF 2016

- [1] Apostolakis G.E., "How useful is quantitative risk assessment?", Risk Anal., 24(2004), pp. 515-20.
- [2] Aven T., Foundations of Risk Analysis, 2003, Wiley, NY; -, "Selective critique of risk assessment with recommendations for improving methodology & practice", Rel. Eng. & Syst. Safety, 2011, pp. 509-14; -, "Risk analysis", pp. 125-49 in [18]
- [3] Bedford T. et al., Probabilistic Risk Analysis: Foundations & Methods, 2001, Cambridge. Univ. Press, UK.
- [4] Birnbaum L.W., "On the importance of different components in a multi-component system", in Multivariate Analysis Vol 2, 1969, Academic Press, NY.
- [5] Birolini A., Reliability Engineering: Theory & Practice, 8th Ed. 2017, Springer, Berlin.
- [6] Digman J.M., "Personality structure: Emerg. 5-factor model", An. Rev. of Psychology, 4(1990), pp. 417-40.
- [7] ESA ECSS—M-00-03A: 2004: Risk Management.
- [8] Frenkel M. et al. (Eds.), Risk Management, 2nd ed. 2005, Springer, Berlin (also in [1.9]).
- [9] Gilovich T. et al. (Eds.), Intuitive Judgment: Heuristics and Biases, 2002, Cambridge Univ. Press, UK.
- [10] Habegger B. (Ed.), Int. HDBK of Risk Analysis & Management, 2008, Center for Security Studies, ETH Zurich.
- [11] Hillson D. et al., Understanding & Manag. Risk Attitudes, 2007, Gower, Burlington, Vermont.
- [12] Hubbard D., The Failure of Risk Management Why it's broken and how to fix it, 2009, Wiley, NY.
- [13] IEC 61508: 2010: Functional Safety; 62198: 2013: Managing Risk in Projects.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 130-137

[14] ISO 73: 2009: Risk Manag. - Vocabulary; 31000: 2009: Risk Manag. - Principles & Guidelines (14971: 2007: Medical; 27005: 2011: Security Tech.); ISO/IEC: 31010: 2009: Risk Manag. Assessment Techn.; 16085: 2006: System & Software Eng. - Life Cycle Process - Risk Manag.; 98-3:2008: Uncertainty of Measurements.

- [15] Liu B., Uncertainty Theory, 2015, Springer, Berlin.
- [16] MacLean D., "Ethics and risk" pp. 791-804 in [6.108].
- [17] Nicholson N. et al. "Personality & domain spec. risk taking" J. of Risk Research., 8(2005)2, pp. 157-76.
- [18] Pham H. (Ed.), Safety and Risk Modeling and its Applications, 2011, Springer, Berlin.
- [19] Roeser S. et al., (Eds.), Handbook of Risk Theory, Vol. 1 & 2, 2012, Springer, Berlin.
- [20] Roeser S. et al., (Eds.), The Ethics of Technological Risk, 2009, Earthscan, London.
- $[21]\ US\ Gov.\ Ac.\ Office,\ Climate\ Eng.,\ 2011,\ http://psych.cf.ac.uk/understandingrisk/docs/spice.pdf.$
- [22] Umiker B. et al., "Wie lassen sich grosse Industriekatastrophen verhüten?", Manag. Zeitschrift, 1(1987), pp. 15-22; "Innovation and resistance to it", 7th Building Congress, Zurich, Nov. 13, 2008; Umiker B. (www.wuco.ch), "The modern art of a discourse on risk", 4th Europ. Conf. on Safety Anal. & Risk Manag., Rome, Oct. 19, 1993; "Risk management: Concept and implementation", ASCOM Tech. Mag., 3(1994), pp. 33-36; "The coconut effect", Amer. Soc. for Ind. Security Meeting, Zurich ETH, June 4, 1997; "Krisenbewältigung durch Innovation", 2009, Bau & Architecktur 4(2009), pp. 2-4.
- [23] Wang J.X. et al., Risk Engineering and Management, 2000, Dekker, NY.
- [24] World Health Organization, Global Health Risks, 2009, WHO, Geneva.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 138-142

A Graph Driven Approach to Data Loss Prevention

Michael BEST

Bensheim, Germany mb@michael-best.de

Abstract

Today, one threat to cybercrime is data leakage. Examples for this are the Snowden publications, theft of financial data or wikileaks. In this paper, a concept is shown to visualize the path between the asset and an actor who might leak the data. To prevent data loss, this path must be secured.

Keywords: Cybercrime, Security, Data, Data loss prevention, Graph-driven approach

- [1] European Union Agency For Network And Information Security, "ENISA Threat Landscape," ENISA, Brussels, 2016.
- [2] Intel Security, "Data exfiltration study: Actors, tactics, and detection," Intel Security, 2015.
- [3] PwC, Turnaround and transformation in cybersecurity, 2016.
- [4] E. Comission, Directive 95/46/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 October 1995, 1995.
- [5] PCI-Council, PCI DSS Standard Version 3.3, PCI, 2016.
- [6] L. Kohnfelder und G. Paerit, "The threats to our products," 01 04 1999. [Online]. Available: https://blogs.msdn.com/cfsfilesystemfile.ashx/__key/communityserver-componentspostattachments/00-09-88-74-86/The-threats-to-our-products.docx. [Zugriff am 16 07 2016].
- [7] B. Scheier, "Attack Trees," 12 1999. [Online]. Available: https://www.schneier.com/academic/archives/1999/12/attack_trees.html. [Zugriff am 16 07 2016]. [8] A. Shostack, threat modeling, Indianapolis: Wiley, 2014.
- [9] W. Stallings und L. Brown, "Computer Security Principle and Practice," Pearson.
- [10] Ernst & Young, "Data Loss Prevention," Ernest & Young, 2011.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 143-149

A System Architecture for Monitoring the Reliability of IoT

Radu BONCEA, Ioan BACIVAROV

Romania Top Level Domain, National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics - ICI Bucharest; University Politehnica of Bucharest, Faculty of Electronics Telecommunications and Information Technology

radu@rotld.ro, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

The Internet of Things has gained momentum in recent years, supported by new technologies and computing paradigms such as Cloud Computing and Service Oriented Architecture and an increasing demand from the enterprise. With hundreds of billions of devices to be connected in the near future, IoT will need new methods for addressing key challenges in security and reliability. One particular challenge we will focus on is the ability of the system to prevent itself from failing by continuously introspecting its own state and take decisions without human intervention. We will demonstrate how this can be achieved using new time series databases and monitoring systems such as Prometheus, InfluxDB, OpenTSDB and Graphite. By logging performance and other transaction metrics, the system can use specific algorithms to predict potential issues and react. We will then show how machine-learning algorithms could be used to reveal new insights, patterns and relationships across data.

Keywords: IoT, monitoring, reliability, self-management, time series, automation, Prometheus, OpenTSDB, InfluxDB

- 1. Balani, Naveen. Enterprise IoT: A Definitive Handbook. ISBN 1518790860.
- 2. Acatech. NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING. 2016.
- 3. Varmesan, Ovidiu and Friess, Peter. Internet of Things: Converging Technologies for Smart Environments and Integrated Ecosystems. s.l.: River Publishers. ISBN: 978-87-92982-73-5.
- 4. Juniper Research. Internet of things' connected devices to almost triple to over 38 billion units by 2020. [Online] http://www.juniperresearch.com/press/press-releases/iot-connecteddevices- to-triple-to-38-bn-by-2020.
- 5. Boncea, Radu, Bacivarov, Ioan C. Security in Internet of Things: Mitigating the Top Vulnerabilities. Asigurarea Calității Quality Assurance. January-March 2016, Vol. XXII, 85, pp. Pages 11-17.
- 6. Prometheus Monitoring system & time series database. [Online] [Cited: 06 20, 2016.] https://prometheus.io.
- 7. Gorilla: A Fast, Scalable, In-Memory Time Series Database. Tuomas Pelkonen, Scott Franklin, Paul Cavallaro, Qi Huang, Justin Meza, Justin Teller, Kaushik Veeraraghavan. 2014-2015, Proceedings of the VLDB Endowment, Vol. 8, pp. 1816 1827.
- 8. Gilchrist, Alasdair. The Technical and Business Innovators of the Industrial Internet. Industry 4.0. s.l.: Apress, pp. 33-64.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 143-149

9. Mauro Andreolini, Marcello Pietri, Stefania Tosi, Riccardo Lancellotti. A Scalable Monitor for Large Systems. Cloud Computing and Services Sciences. 2015: Springer International Publishing, pp. 100-116.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 150-155

Migration of a SOC to SIC Security Operations Center vs. Security Intelligence Center The use of Honeypots for Threat Intelligence

Ionuţ-Daniel BARBU, Cristian PASCARIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV

EUROQUALROM - ETTI, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania barbu.ionutdaniel@gmail.com, crpascariu@gmail.com, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

The purpose of this paper is to emphasize the advantages of transitioning from the classic Security Operations Centers into an advanced model that leverages intelligence to understand and anticipate threats targeting the organization. By tackling the proactive vs. reactive approach towards cybersecurity it is intended to present a comparison between the two models. Initially it focuses on the ability to anticipate threats before they become incidents and also on the drawbacks of the classical SOC including the reactive security posture and monitoring. Furthermore, the article analyzes the impact of such a transition to both processes and people. It is worth mentioning the automation aspect of the migration which enables the human to separate from routine activities, allowing them to focus on the intelligence gathered. As the enterprise oriented tools from various vendors are intended to work for everyone but are optimized for no one, the authors highlight the importance of deploying custom tools supported by knowledgeable engineering teams. On that matter, the final part of the paper is dedicated to honeypot deployment by underlining their benefits from a Threat Intelligence perspective.

Keywords: SOC, SIC, Threat Intelligence, APT, HoneyPots

- [1] SOC vs. SIC: The Difference of an Intelligence Driven Defense Solution, Lockheed Martin Corporation Reviewed 2nd of March 2016
- [2] The Six Stages of Incident Response, Dark Reading, 2007 Reviewed 14 of May 2015
- [3] http://www.lockheedmartin.com Reviewed 28 of March 2016
- [4] https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Advanced persistent threat Reviewed 2nd of May 2016
- [5] https://technet.microsoft.com/dynimg/IC78017.jpg
- [6] https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Honeypot (computing) Reviewed 3rd of June 2016
- [7] Naveen, Sharanya. "Honeypot" Reviewed 1st of June 2016.
- [8] Lance Spitzner (2002). Honeypots tracking hackers. Addison- Wesley. pp. 68-70. ISBN 0-321-10895-7. Reviewed August 2014
- [9] BARBU, I.D., PETRICĂ, G. (2015). Defense in Depth Principle to Ensure Information Security. International Journal of Information Security and Cybercrime, 4(1), 41-46. Retrieve from http://www.ijisc.com

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 150-155

[10] MIHAI, I.C., PRUNĂ, Ş., BARBU, I.D. (2014). Cyber Kill Chain Analysis. International Journal of Information Security and Cybercrime, 3(2), 37-42. Retrieve from http://www.ijisc.com

[11] An introduction to threat intelligence, CERT-UK - Reviewed July 2015

[12] http://www.honeyd.org/concepts.php - Reviewed September 2015

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 156-160

Cloud for Europe Project: New Solutions for Addressing Cloud Security Issues

Radu BONCEA, Carmen Elena CÎRNU

Romania Top Level Domain, National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics - ICI Bucharest; Systems Engineering Department, National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics - ICI Bucharest

radu@rotld.ro, carmen.cirnu@ici.ro

Abstract

Cloud for Europe strategic objective has been to identify the obstacles for cloud adoption by the public sector and to find solutions for addressing these challenges. One key challenge for cloud adoption is the security of the data, in particular the privacy of the data. Public institutions have been reluctant to moving sensitive data in and out of the cloud, specially the data related to citizens. Thus, C4E has focused its resources on finding solutions to ensure a certain level of security and privacy by acquiring research and development from industry using pre-commercial procurement procedures. As a result, the industry is expected to deliver a federated certified service brokerage, a secure legislation-aware storage solution and a legislation execution methodology or framework. We will describe C4E vision on how these three components could be used for denying unauthorized access to private data and for reacting to security breaches, using a dynamic set of rules.

Keywords: IoT, security, cloud computing, C4E, policy, business rules

- 1. European Commission. Community Research and Development Information Service. [Online] http://cordis.europa.eu/project/rcn/109302 en.html.
- 2. H. Leitold (A-SIT), A. Reiter (IAIK), F.J.M. van Dam (MINEZ). D4.1 Services Catalogue. s.l.: Cloud fo Europe, 2014. deliverable.
- 3. C4E. Second market consultation input paper. www.cloudforeurope.eu. [Online] [Cited: 06 10, 2016.] http://www.cloudforeurope.eu/documents/10179/51413/Secon
- d market Consultation input paper.pdf/db5e65bd-0b75-423a-b7df-75e69c155dbf?version=1.0.
- 4. C4E. First market consultation input paper. www.cloudforeurope.eu. [Online] [Cited: 06 10, 2016.] http://www.cloudforeurope.eu/documents/10179/51413/First+
- market+consultation+input+paper/d2cca9eb-8f1b-4692-86ef-143eac8c930b?version=1.0.
- 5. H. Leitold (A-SIT), A. Reiter (IAIK). D4.3 Services Specification. s.l.: Cloud for Europe, 2014. deliverable.
- 6. Granger, Stewart. Digital Preservation & Emulation: from theory to practice. s.l.: Archives & Museum Informatics.
- 7. Congress. OpenStack Wiki. [Online] OpenStack. [Cited: 06 10, 2016.] https://wiki.openstack.org/wiki/Congress.
- 8. Open Policy Agent . [Online] [Cited: 06 10, 2016.] http://www.openpolicyagent.org/.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 161-166

Secure Smart Cities

Cristian PASCARIU, Ionuţ - Daniel BARBU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV

EUROQUALROM - ETTI, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania crpascariu@gmail.com, barbu.ionutdaniel@gmail.com, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

This article approaches the subject of "Internet of Things" (IoT) applied to larger environments such as Cities and the security risks involved around protecting data. The research was driven by a session of tests carried out on a development board targeted at building small IoT projects in an attempt to study hardware and software limitations. With new embedded architectures emerging, new types of vulnerabilities are discovered, the main goal of this article to promote new security guidelines for mitigating the security risks of Smart Cities.

Keywords: Internet of Things, IoT, Data, Security, Risk, Smart City, Security risk, IoT project

- 1) Introducing the Adafruit WICED Feather Wifi, TOWNSEND K., 2016, https://cdnlearn.adafruit.com/downloads/pdf/introducing-the-adafruitwiced-feather-wifi.pdf
- 2) The Internet of Everything for Cities, Shane M., Villa N., Stewart-weeks M., Lange A., Cisco, 2013, http://www.cisco.com/c/dam/en_us/solutions/industries/docs/g ov/everything-for-cities.pdf
- 3) MQTT Security Fundamentals, HiveMQ blog http://www.hivemq.com/blog/introducing-the-mqtt-securityfundamentals
- 4) Hackers are holding hospital computers hostage, Wired, 2016: https://www.wired.com/2016/02/hack-brief-hackers-areholding- an-la-hospitals-computers-hostage/
- 5) An Internet of Things Reference Architecture, Symantec, https://www.symantec.com/content/en/us/enterprise/white_pa pers/iot-security-reference-architecture-wp-en.pdf
- 6) State of the Market The Internet of Things 2015, Verizon, http://www.verizonenterprise.com/resources/reports/rp_stateof- market-the-market-the-internet-of-things-2015 en xg.pdf
- 7) Principles of IoT Security, OWASP, reviewed on May 2016, https://www.owasp.org/index.php/Principles of IoT Security
- 8) IoT Framework Assessment, OWASP, 2016, https://www.owasp.org/index.php/IoT Framework Assessment
- 9) Certification Authorities, Wikipedia, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Certificate authority
- 10) How over 30 Jeeps were Hacked into and Driven Away, Hackread, 2016, https://www.hackread.com/30-jeeps-hackeddriven-away/

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 167-175

Online Platform for Reliability Data Processing

Angelica BACIVAROV, Ioan C. BACIVAROV, Mihai PAULIŞ

Laboratorul EUROQUALROM - ETTI, Universitatea "Politehnica" din Bucureşti, România angelica@euroqual.pub.ro, ibacivarov@yahoo.com

Abstract

Reliability data, obtained from reliability tests, or collected over time from beneficiaries, workshop, are processed based on statistical models that result in estimated values of reliability indices for products considered. You can get numerical values or functions for which further processed allow a full analysis of reliability. The platform developed by the authors addresses the two main methods for assessment of reliability indices: nonparametric and parametric methods. The platform which was developed in MATLAB, it is part of a larger e-learning platform. It is used for training in engineering quality and reliability, particularly in electronics, but can be used by extension in any real reliability laboratory from other areas: mechanical, construction, etc.

Keywords: Reliability, Data, Reliability, Reliability indices, Data, Data processing, MATLAB

- [1] V. Cătuneanu, I.C. Bacivarov, "Fiabilitatea sistemelor de telecomunicații", Editura Militară, Bucuresti, 1985.
- [2] I.C. Bacivarov, Angelica Bacivarov, A. Mihalache, "Controlul statistic al conformității și fiabilității produselor", Editura ELECTRONICA 2000, București, 2003, ISBN 973- 99878-6-9.
- [3] Angelica Bacivarov, I.C. Bacivarov, A. Mihalache, "Fiabilitatea şi mentenabilitatea sistemelor electronice", Editura ELECTRONICA 2000, Bucureşti, 2003, ISBN 973- 99878-7-7.
- [4] V. Cătuneanu, Angelica Bacivarov, "Structuri electronice de înaltă fiabilitate. Toleranța de defectări", Editura Militară, București, 1989.
- [5] Angelica Bacivarov, I.C. Bacivarov, A. Mihalache, "Teoria fiabilității și control statistic. Culegere de probleme", Tipografia Institutului Politehnic București, 1989.
- [6] Alin Mihalache, Fabrice Guerin, I.C. Bacivarov, Angelica Bacivarov, "A method for reliability estimation of heterogeneous systems", ADVANCED TOPICS ÎN OPTOELECTRONICS, MICROELECTRONICS, AND NANOTECHNOLOGIES IV Book Series: Proceedings of SPIE Volume: 7297, Article Number: 72972H Published: 2009, WOS:000291642900089, ISBN:978-0-8194-7559-6ISSN: 0277-786X.
- [7] Angelica Bacivarov, Ioan C. Bacivarov, C. Ciuchi, G. Petrică, "A Reliable Database for Knowledge in Quality Field", Proceedings of the 10th International Symposium for Design and Technology of Electronic Packages, Sept.23-26. Bucharest, Romania, pp. 45-50, ISBN 973-9463-83-5.
- [8] I.C. Bacivarov, Angelica Bacivarov, A. Barreau, L. Balme, Michele Cano, A. Goncalves, A. Wielle, "EUROQUALROM An European Educational Network in Quality", Amplifying Quality Networks, Proceedings of Millennium International Quality Conference, Jerusalem, Israel, 2000, pp 56-61.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 167-175

- [9] I.C. Bacivarov, M. Bazu, L. Balme, "A Synergetic Approach to Reliability Prediction", Probabilistic Safety Assessment and Management (C. Cacciabue, Ed), Springer, London, 1996, pp. 1464-1470.
- [10] L. Balme, I.C. Bacivarov, M. Bazu, On Reliability Testing of Semiconductor Devices, in Proceedings of the 9th European Conference on Reliability and Maintainability ESREL '94, La Baule, France, 1994, pp. 215-221.
- [11] V. Cătuneanu, V. Corlățeanu, O. Iancu, M. Drăgulinescu, A.B. Bacivarov, I.C. Bacivarov ş.a, "Materiale pentru electronică. Fiabilitate şi control statistic", Editura Didactică şi pedagogică, Bucureşti, 1983.
- [12] C. Lon Enloe, Elizabeth Garnett, Jonathan Miles, "Physical Science: What the Technology Professional Needs to Know", Wiley, John & Sons, 2000, ISBN: 978-0-471-36018-6.
- [13] Gh. Mihoc, A. Muja, E. Diatcu, "Bazele matematice ale teoriei fiabilității", Ed. Dacia, Cluj-Napoca, 1976.
- [14] Al. Isaic-Maniu, V. Gh. Vodă, "Fiabiliatea şansă şi risc", Editura Tehnică, Bucureşti, 1986.
- [15] STAS 10307-75: Fiabilitatea produselor industriale. Indicatori de fiabilitate.
- [16] C. Popovici, Emilia Popovici, Gh. Sufaru, "Metoda celor mai mici pătrate cu Matlab", Conferința Națională de Învățământ Virtual, ediția a IV-a, 2006, pag. 139-144.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 176-180

A Reliable Architecture for a Massive and Continuous Scanner of Web Vulnerabilities in Internet

Eugenie STĂICUŢ, Radu BONCEA, Carmen ROTUNĂ

Romania Top Level Domain, National Institute for Research and Development in Informatics - ICI Bucharest

estaicut@rotld.ro, radu@rotld.ro, carmen.rotuna@rotld.ro

Abstract

In recent years, the Web has become one of the major vectors for transmitting malware and computer viruses. As a response, nations around the world have established Computer Emergency Response Teams with the purpose of countering the next generation of cyber threats. One such solution is for CERTs to pro-actively scan the Web for vulnerabilities and notify the right persons before malicious users could exploit the vulnerable application. Another solution is to search the Web for compromised and vulnerable applications and take appropriate actions, such as sending simple notifications to application's owner. Either way, continuously scanning of the Web is a complex task which requires a reliable architecture. In this paper we propose a data-centric architecture, with focus on a distributed streaming processing system. We will define a virtual process bus as a group of data channels where a process can take its input from a specific channel and write the result to an output set of channels.

Keywords: cybersecurity, stream processing, distributed processing, messaging, ETL, Kafka, vulnerability

- [1] Huseyin, Birendra Mishra, and Srinivasan Raghunathan. "The effect of internet security breach announcements on market value: Capital market reactions for breached firms and internet security developers", International Journal of Electronic Commerce 9.1 (2004): 70-104.
- [2] Powers, J., Anderson, R., Trueblood, N., & Ciruli, D. (2005). U.S. Patent Application No. 11/245,952.
- [3] https://access.redhat.com/documentation/en-
- US/Fuse Message Broker/5.3/html/Getting Started/files/Fuse MBStartedKeyJMS.html
- [4] http://www.jonathanbeard.io/blog/2015/09/19/streaming-anddataflow. html
- [5] https://www.datadoghq.com/blog/monitoring-kafkaperformance- metrics/
- [6] https://owasp.org
- [7] https://dzone.com/articles/kafka-logs-and-the-policy-of-truth
- [8] https://kafka.apache.org
- [9] http://tools.kali.org/

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 181-184

Maintenance Dependence Modeling with Gaussian Copulas

Adrian Stere PARIS, Dana SYLVAN, Constantin TÂRCOLEA

Department TMS, Politehnica University Bucharest, Romania; Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Hunter College of the City University of New York, USA; Department Mathem., Politehnica University Bucharest, Romania adrian.paris@upb.ro, dsylvan@hunter.cuny.edu, constantin tarcolea@yahoo.com

Abstract

The main objective of the paper is to study the response variable -joint cumulative distribution function (CDF) - of two controlled variables, mileage (measured in kilometers) and maintenance costs based on which we predict or explain the output variable. The paper proposes a method based on the bivariate cumulative normal distribution with the Nataf model and compares it to the method of transforming the dependent into independent variables with similar results. The methodology is applied to real-life data assessing the dependence between the traffic urban mileage and the total maintenance costs .Based on copula functions, the Nataf transformation is used to handle the dependence of correlated predictor variables and marginal distributions. Copula requires only marginal CDFs and correlation parameters in order to approximate the joint outcome variable. The main idea of the second applied method is to transform the dependent normal random variables into independent standard ones. The two sets of values of the joint predicted variable were compared with suitable outcome. The proposed statistical models have general application and could be used for technical and economical prognoses and schedules.

Keywords: Model, Maintenance, Maintenance costs, Cumulative distribution function, Normal distribution, Nataf model, Copula functions, Prognose

- [1] Paris A.S., Andreescu C., Dragomirescu C. and Târcolea C.: "Maintenance Costs Statistics for Urban Cars", Proceedings of the European Automotive Congress EAEC-ESFA, 26 November 2015 Springer Verlag, Berlin, Editors Cristian Andreescu, Adrian Clenci, 2015, pp. 297-305.
- [2] Franke J., Härdle W. K. and Hafner, C. M.: "Statistics of Financial Markets, An Introduction", Springer Verlag, 2008.
- [3] Nelsen R. B.: "An Introduction to Copulas", Lecture Notes in Statistics, vol. 139, Springer Science & Business Media, 2013.
- [4] Lu D.G., Song P.Y., Liu Y.F. and Yu X.H.: "An extended first order reliability method based on generalized Nataf transformation", In: Safety, Reliability, Risk and Life-Cycle Performance of Structures and Infrastructures, Editors George Deodatis, Bruce R. Ellingwood, Dan M. Frangopol, CRC Press, 2014, pp. 1177-1184.
- [5] Noh Y., Choi K. K. and Du L.: "Reliability-based design optimization of problems with correlated input variables using a Gaussian Copula", Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Volume 38, Issue 1, Springer Verlag, 2009, pp.1-16.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 181-184

- [6] Pishro-Nik H.:"Introduction to Probability, Statistics, and Random Processes", Kappa Research, LLC, Athens, 2014.
- [7] Parsa R.A. and Klugman S. A.:"Copula Regression", Volume 5/issue 1, Casualty Actuarial Society, 2011, pp.45-54.
- [8] Lebrun R. and Dutfoy A.: "Do Rosenblatt and Nataf isoprobabilistic transformations really differ?" Probabilistic Engineering Mechanics 24, 2009, pp. 577-584.
- [9] Silverman, B. W.: "Density estimation for statistics and data analysis", Vol. 26, CRC Press, 1986. [10] Tang X.-S., Li D.-Q., Zhou C.-B. and Zhang L.-M.: "Bivariate distribution models using copulas for reliability analysis", ProcIMechE Part O: J Risk and Reliability(0), 2013, pp.1-14.
- [11] Paris A.S. and Târcolea C.: "Reliability block diagram models for correlated structures", 9th Symposium Durability and Reliability of Mechanical Systems, SYMECH 2016, 20 May, Runcu, Ed. Univ C. Brâncuşi, Tg. Jiu, Fiability and Durability, no. 1, 2016, pp.62-66.
- [12] Paris A.S., and Târcolea C.: "Performance degradation and reliability", Proceedings of the 14th Int. Conf. Quality and Dependability, Sinaia, Romania, Sept 17th-19th, 2014, pp. 349-355.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 185-190

Certification of Quality Management Systems in Media Industry

David BALME

Challenge Optimum SA, Geneve, Switzerland david.balme@optimum.ch

Abstract

Media corporations, unlike any other company, have to satisfy two kinds of customers with potentially contradictory expectations: audience/readership and advertisers. Some of them even have to satisfy governmental expectations and/or requirements which add another layer of complexity in the production of contents. Those of them which aim at providing news to the general public are constantly threatened by biased editorial production due to the number and complexity of interactions with their stakeholders. Some key aspects of topicality necessary to forge public opinion may be simply hidden for untold reasons. Consequently, in order to help media corporations achieve editorial independence while serving the public interest, media professionals from all over the world have brought together their management know-how in a set of duly selected media specific requirements gathered in the so called ISAS MEDIA9001 standard, entirely based on ISO 9001. These requirements stand for the current best management practices so as to not only produce high quality news but also ensure long term sustainability of the media while aiming at serving the public interest.

Keywords: media management, newsroom, editorial independence, public interest, freedom of expression,

censorship, quality management, risk, stakeholders, ISO 9001, ISAS MEDIA 9001.

- [1] [BAL2015] ISO 9001:2015: a key lever to take up the challenges of deregulated markets, change of consumption habits and make the best use of technological breakthroughs, Quality Assurance, September 2015.
- [2] [BOE2014] Statistical Summary of Commercial Jet Airplane Accidents, Worldwide operations 1959-2013. Aviation Safety, Boeing Commercial Airplanes, August 2014.
- [3] [CLICK2015] Click-N-Manage software, www.Click-N-Manage.com.
- [4] [EDEL2016] Edelman Trust Barometer, http://www.edelman.com/insights/intellectual-property/2016-edelman-trust-barometer/.
- [5] [GRI2012] Global Reporting Initiative sector guidance for the media industry (media Supplement), https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/sector-guidance/sector-guidance/media/Pages/default.aspx.
- [6] [ISAS2016] ISAS MEDIA9001:2016 A quality management standard dedicated to media industries (radio, TV, print media, Internet), http://www.media-society.org/en/isas-BCP-9001-standard.
- [7] [ISAS2010] ISAS BCP9001:2010 A quality management standard dedicated to media industries (radio, TV, print media, Internet), http://www.media-society.org/en/isas-BCP-9001-standard.
- [8] [ISO9001] ISO survey 2014, http://www.iso.org/iso/iso_survey_executive-summary.pdf?v2014.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 185-190

[9] [MED2014] Newspapers Turning Ideas into Dollars, Four Revenue Success Stories. Pew Research Center's Project for Excellence in Journalism, 2013, www.journalism.org.
[10] [RWB2015] Reporters Without Borders World Press Freedom Index, 2015,

http://index.rsf.org/#!/.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 191-193

Kaizen: Concepts and Misinterpretations

Jun NAKAMURO

Executive Director, Enna, Bellingham WA, 98229, USA jnakamuro@gmail.com

Abstract

The Japanese word "Kaizen" has become a blanket term for a variety of improvement initiatives. It is sometimes used synonymously with "Lean", which is itself often used synonymously with "Six-Sigma", "5S", and "TPS". Kaizen stands out from this pack of process improvement labels because, more than any other, Kaizen has deep cultural connotations. This article seeks remedy the misinterpretations of Kaizen that have become common outside of Japan. It's objective is to enhance the cultural approach to process improvement within all industries by accurately defining Kaizen and its supporting elements in their original context within Japanese culture.

Keywords: Kaizen, Lean, Hansei, Japanese, Leadership, culture, translation

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 194-206

Physical and Logical Security Risk Assessment Procedure for SMEs, according to ISO/IEC 27005:2011 and SR ISO 31000:2010 Standards

Marian FIROIU, Ioan C. BACIVAROV

EUROQUALROM - ETTI, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania mfiroiu@hotmail.com, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

This paper proposes an assessment procedure for physical and logical risk security for small and medium-sized enterprises. This procedure relies on SR ISO 31000: 2010 and ISO/IEC 27005: 2011 standards, is created step by step as a working model and is sustained by concrete examples facilitating the understanding of the risk assessment and analysis. This procedure is meant to be a useful and an easy tool for specialists who are concerned with security risk assessment.

Keywords: organization, security, risk, standards, SR ISO 31000, ISO/IEC 27005, procedure, risk management

system, information security, risk assessment, physical security

- [1] *** ISACA (2007), CISM review manual, ISACA, p. 77.
- [2] https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Security_convergence, accessed on 15th of February 2016.
- [3] http://www.gie.eu/index.php/publications/cat_view/2-giepublications77, accessed on 15th of February 2016.
- [4] *** ISO (2011), ISO/IEC 27005:2011 Information technology Security techniques Information security risk management.
- [5] *** ISO (2010), SR ISO 31000:2010 Risk management Principles and Guidelines on Implementation.
- [6] Firoiu, Marian (2015), General Considerations on Risk Management and Information System Security Assessment According to ISO/IEC 27005:2011 and ISO 31000:2009 Standard, Quality-Access to Success, Vol. 16, Nr. 149, pp. 93-97.
- [7] Shortreed, John (2010), ERM Frameworks, in: Fraser, John R.S. & Simkins, Betty J. [ed.], Enterprise Risk Management, Hoboken, New Jersey: John Wiley & Sons.
- [8] Michael E. Whitman and Herbert J. Mattord (2012), Principles of Information Security, Course Technology, Cengage Learning, https://www.cengagebrain.co.nz/content/whitman38214_1111 138214 02.01 chapter01.pdf,accessedon16thofFebruary 2016.
- [9] Bacivarov, Ioan C., Firoiu, Marian (2008), Risk Assessment for Critical Infrastructures, Proceedings of the Conference on Quality and Dependability CCF 2008, Sinaia, Romania.
- [10] *** (2013), SR BS 31100:2013 Risk management Code of practice and guidance for implementation SR ISO 31000.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 194-206

[11] *** ENISA (2006), https://www.enisa.europa.eu/.../risk-management/ .../information-package/ Risk Assessment and Risk Management Methods: Information Packages for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) - ENISA ad hoc working group on risk assessment and risk management.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 207-210

L'utilisation du logiciel Statistica dans le domaine du contrôle qualité

Marouane OUBAIABRA

Université d'Angers-ISTIA, Angers, France oubaiabra.marouane@gmail.com

Abstract

Aujourd'hui il existe de nombreuses applications de contrôle qualité et plus précisément sur la maîtrise statistique des procédés (MSP). Ces applications sont destinées à détecter une dérive d'un processus afin de réagir au plus vite et sont présentes dans de nombreux secteurs. Dans l'utilité d'appliquer un suivi de processus, il est essentiel de connaître les grands fondamentaux théoriques. On peut suivre la qualité d'un produit à chaque prélèvement d'échantillonnage, par une série de données qui est alors représentées par une courbe grâce notamment aux cartes de contrôle. Le but de l'article reste l'application à l'aide d'une simulation de données sur un logiciel afin d'appliquer ces principes.

Keywords: Contrôle qualité, Maîtrise Statistique des Procédés, Carte de contrôle, Logiciel

References:

MONTGOMERY, D. C. (2009). "Basic Methods of Statistical Process Control and Capability". Analysis Statistical Quality Control. Chapter 3, pp.179-231

MILLET, M. (2005). "Les concepts de la Maîtrise Statistique des Processus", Appliquer la maîtrise statistique des processus, Chapter 2, pp.31-77

TIPLICA, T. (2002). "Contributions à la maitrise statistique des processus industriels multivaries", Doctoral thesis

WOODALL, W. H. (2000). "Controversies and Contradictions in Statistical Process Control" Journal of Quality Technology 32, pp.341-350

WOODALL, W. H. (2006). "The Use of Control Charts in Health- Care and Public-Health Surveillance" Journal of Quality Technology 38, pp.89-104

WOODALL, W. H., DAN J. SPITZNER, DOUGLAS C. MONTGOMERY and SHILPA GUPTA (2004). "Using Control Charts to Monitor Process and Product Quality Profiles" Journal of Quality Technology 36, pp.309-320.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 211-217

Analytic Study on Cyber-Attacks Structure

Ioan-Cosmin MIHAI, Ioan BACIVAROV

Academia de Poliție "A.I. Cuza", București, România; Universitatea POLITEHNICA din București, România

cosmin.mihai@academiadepolitie.ro, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

Cyber-attacks experienced lately a great diversification and some of them can be classified as global epidemics. There are many kind of cyber-attacks like malware: computer viruses, worms, trojans, adware, spyware, ransomware, rogueware, Distributed Denial of Service, e-mail and web based attacks. This article examines and classifies all these cyber-attacks using the intrusion model Kill Chain, defined by researchers from Lockheed Martin.

Keywords: Computer, Security, Cybersecurity, Cyber-attack, Virus, Analyses, Intrusion model, Model Kill Chain

- [1] Gorman, S. and Barnes, J., "Cyber Combat: Act of War", 2011.
- [2] Tidwell, T., Larson, R., Fitch, K. and Hale, J., "Modeling Internet Attacks", 2001.
- [3] Cowan, C., Wagle, P., Pu, C., Beattie, S. and Walpole, J., "Buffer Overflows: Attacks and Defenses for the Vulnerability of the Decade", DARPA Information Survivability Conference and Expo (DISCEX), 2000.
- [4] Hutchins, M. Eric., Clopperty, Michael J., and Amin, Rohan M., "Intelligence Driven Computer Network Defense Informed by Analysis of Adversary Campaigns and Intrusion Kill Chains", 2011.
- [5] Majority Staff Report, "A Kill Chain Analysis of the 2013 Target Data Breach", 2014.
- [6] ENISA Threat Landscape 2014, "Overview of Current and Emerging Cyber-Threats", 2014.
- [7] Tulloch, M., Koch, J., and Haynes, Sandra, "Microsoft Encyclopedia of Security", Microsoft Press. 2003, p. 16.
- [8] Preimesberger, C., "DDoS Attack Volume Escalates as New Methods Emerge", eWeek, 2014.
- [9] Ramzan, Z., "Phishing attacks and countermeasures", Handbook of Information and Communication Security, Springer, 2010.
- [10] Gragido, W., "Lions at the Watering Hole The "VOHO" Affair", RSA Blog. EMC Corporation, 2012.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 218-224

On the Ensuring the Resilience in Communication Networks

Dorina Luminița COPACI, Angelica BACIVAROV

Tribunalul București, București, România; Laboratorul EUROQUALROM, Universitatea "Politehnica" din București, România lcopaci@yahoo.com, angelica@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

In many communication networks the resilience to failures and attacks is becoming an essential requirement. In these networks the cost of failures is significant. In this paper, we present strategies for improve resilience for different types of communication network as well as in P2P overlay networks. The attacks analyzed in this paper are the Denial of Service attacks (DoS) in order to assess the damage that difficult-to-detect which attackers can cause. Our methodology is to study DoS resilience via a new and general class of protocol compliant denial-of-service attacks, which we refer to as JellyFish (JF). In addition to the JF attack, the Black Hole attack is studied, too.

Keywords: Communication networks, Resilience, Models, Malicious attacks, DoS attacks, JellyFish, Black Hole

- [1] I. Aad, J.-P. Hubaux and E. Knightly. Impact of Denial of Service Attacks on Ad Hoc Networks, in IEEE Transactions on Networking, 2008.
- [2] S. Bohacek, J. Hespanha, J. Lee, C. Lim, and K. Obraczka. TCPPR: TCP for persistent packet reordering. In Proceedings of the 23rd IEEE International Conference on Distributed Computing Systems, May 2003.
- [3] Yih-Chun Hu, Adrian Perrig, and David B. Johnson. Ariadne: A secure on-demand routing protocol for ad hoc networks. In Proceedings of the Eighth ACM International Conference on Mobile Computing and Networking (MobiCom 2002), September 2002.
- [4] Yih-Chun Hu, David B. Johnson, and Adrian Perrig. SEAD: Secure Efficient Distance Vector Routing for Mobile Wireless Ad Hoc Networks. Ad Hoc Networks, 2003.
- [5] Constantin Alin Copaci, Luminiţa Dorina Copaci, "Ensuring the Resilience against Denial of Service Attacks in Ad-hoc Networks", in Proceedings of the 11th IEEE International Conference in Quality and Dependability, Sinaia, sept 2008 pg. 179-186.
- [6] Dorina Luminiţa Copaci, Angelica Bacivarov, On Implementation of Resilient Networks. A Case Study, in Asigurarea Calitatii-Quality Assurance, ISSN 1224-5410, Vol. XXII, Issue 85, January-March 2016, pp
- [7] P. Elias, A. Feinstein, and C. Shannon. A note on the maximum flow through a network. IEEE Transactions on Information Theory, 2:117-119, December 1956.
- [8] G. Ellinas, A. G. Hailemariam, and T. E. Stern. Protection cycles in mesh wdm networks. Selected Areas in Communications, IEEE Journal on, 18(10):1924-1937, Oct 2000.
- [9] W. Grover. Mesh-Based Survivable Networks. Options and Strategies for Optical, MPLS, SONET, and ATM Networking. 2004.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 218-224

- [10] A. F. Hansen, A. Kvalbein, T. Cicic, S. Gjessing, and O. Lysne. Resilient routing layers for recovery in packet networks. International Conference on Dependable Systems and Networks DSN 2005. Proceedings, pages 238-247, June-1 July 2005.
- [11] T. Klingberg and R. Manfredi. The gnutella protocol specification v0.6. http://rfc-gnutella.sourceforge.net/, 2002.
- [12] A. Kvalbein, A. F. Hansen, T. Cicic, S. Gjessing, and O. Lysne. Fast recovery from link failures using resilient routing layers. 10th IEEE Symposium on Computers and Communications, ISCC 2005. Proceedings, pages 554-560, June 2005.
- [13] A. Kvalbein, A. F. Hansen, T. Cicic, S. Gjessing, and O. Lysne. Fast ip network recovery using multiple routing configurations. INFOCOM 2006. 25th IEEE International Conference on Computer Communications, pages 1-11, April 2006.
- [14] S. Lee, Y. Yu, S. Nelakuditi, Z.-L. Zhang, and C.-N. Chuah. Proactive vs reactive approaches to failure resilient routing. INFOCOM 2004. Twenty-third AnnualJoint Conference of the IEEE Computer and Communications Societies, 1:-186, March 2004.
- [15] M. Medard, S. G. Finn, R. A. Barry, and R. G. Gallager. Redundant trees for preplanned recovery in arbitrary vertexredundant or edge-redundant graphs. IEEE/ACM Transactions on Networking, 7(5):641-652, Oct 1999.
- [16] J. M. Michael Menth, Andreas Reifert. Self-protecting multipaths a simple and resource-efficient protection switching mechanism for mpls networks. 3rd IFIP-TC6 Networking Conference (Networking 2004 Athens/Greece), 2004.
- [17] C. G. Plaxton, R. Rajaraman, and A. W. Richa. Accessing nearby copies of replicated objects in a distributed environment. In ACM Symposium on Parallel Algorithms and Architectures, pages 311-320, 1997.
- [18] S. Ratnasamy, P. Francis, M. Handley, R. Karp, and S. Schenker. A scalable content-addressable network. In Conference on Applications, Technologies, Architectures, and Protocols for Computer Communications, pages 161-172, 2001.
- [19] E. Rosen, A. Viswanathan, and R. Callon. Multiprotocol label switching architecture, jan 2001.
- [20] D. J. Rosenkrantz, S. Goel, S. S. Ravi, J. Gangolly: Structure- Based Resilience Metrics for Service-Oriented Networks, October 11, 2004.
- [21] A. Rowstron and P. Druschel. Pastry: Scalable, distributed object location and routing for large-scale peer-to-peer systems. In IFIP/ACM International Conference on Distributed Systems Platforms, pages 329 350, November 2001.
- [22] I. Stoica, R. Morris, D. Karger, F. Kaashoek, and H. Balakrish-nan. Chord: A Scalable Peer-to-Peer Lookup Service for Internet Aplications. In ACM Applications, Technologies, Architectures, and Protocols for Computer Communication, pages 149 160, September 2001.
- [23] W. W. Terpstra, J. Kangasharju, C. Leng, and A. P. Buchmann. Bubblestorm: resilient, probabilistic, and exhaustive peer-topeer search. In SIGCOMM Comput. Commun. Rev., 2007.
- [24] https://www.tuilmenau.de/fileadmin/public/afs/pub/paper/pik01-09.pdf
- [25] D. B. Johnson and D. Maltz, "The dynamic source routing protocol for mobile ad hoc networks (DSR)," 2003, http://www.ietf.org/internet-drafts/draft-ietf-manet-dsr-9.txt.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 225-232

Using Digital Signature to Ensure Information Security

Gabriel PETRICĂ, Ioan C. BACIVAROV

Laboratorul EUROQUALROM, Facultatea de Electronică, Telecomunicații și Tehnologia Informației, Universitatea POLITEHNICA din București, România gabriel.petrica@upb.ro, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

The digital signature is an encrypted mark of authentication, embedded in documents and emails or used in Internet communications, which ensures the integrity and security of data transmitted. Using the digital signature brings additional benefits: the identity of the signer can be verified, ensure product authenticity and transmitted data encryption. The high degree of security conferred by digital signatures is ensured by the use of encryption with public key and hash functions (which determines whether or not the information has been changed). This paper shows how to use digital signatures and certificates to ensure authentication and encryption of information (from simple text to complex documents).

Keywords: digital signature, digital certificate, hash function, Public Key Infrastructure, encryption

- [1] H.G. nr. 271/2013 pentru aprobarea Strategiei de securitate cibernetică a României și a Planului de acțiune la nivel național privind implementarea Sistemului național de securitate cibernetică, Monitorul Oficial, Partea I, nr. 296 din 23.05.2013.
- [2] Regulamentul (UE) nr. 910/2014 al Parlamentului European și al Consiliului din 23 iulie 2014 privind identificarea electronică și serviciile de încredere pentru tranzacțiile electronice pe piața internă și de abrogare a Directivei 1999/93/CE, http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legalcontent/ RO/TXT/?uri= CELEX%3A32014R0910
- [3] Digital Signature Standard (DSS), FIPS PUB 186-4, FEDERAL INFORMATION PROCESSING STANDARDS PUBLICATION, http://nvlpubs.nist.gov/nistpubs/FIPS/NIST. FIPS.186-4.pdf
- [4] Registrul furnizorilor de servicii de certificare, Ministerul Comunicațiilor și Societății Informaționale, http://www.mcsi.ro/Minister/Domenii-de-activitate-ale-MCSI/ Tehnologia-Informatiei/Servicii-electronice/Semnaturaelectronica/ Registrul-furnizorilo-de-servicii-decertificare-P
- [5] Ioan-Cosmin Mihai, Gabriel Petrică, Costel Ciuchi, Laurențiu Giurea: "Provocări și strategii de securitate cibernetică", Editura Sitech, Craiova, 2015, 230 pag., ISBN 978-606-11-4951-3.
- [6] J. Habraken: "Office 2013 In Depth", Oue Publishing, 2013.
- [7] Microsoft TechNet Library, https://technet.microsoft.com
- [8] Lisa Bucki, J. Walkenbach, M. Alexander, R. Kusleika, and F. Wempen: "Microsoft Office 2013 Bible: The Comprehensive Tutorial Resource", John Wiley & Sons, 2013.
- [9] About certificate signatures in Adobe Acrobat, Acrobat Help, https://helpx.adobe.com/acrobat.html

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 225-232

[10] X.509 standard, ITU, https://www.itu.int/rec/T-REC-X.509

[11] Public Key Infrastructure, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/ Public_key_infrastructure

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 233-236

VoIP - Nowadays Gateway for a Better Unified Communication

Cătălina GHERGHINA, Angelica BACIVAROV

EUROQUALROM - ETTI, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, Romania katalina.gherghina@gmail.com, angelica@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

The main aim of this research paper is to describe why VoIP is one of the most effective and in vogue technologies in today's communications industry. Having already achieved a positive impact worldwide, by its well-known advantages of the cost savings and high-quality of the voice applied on calls over a flexible voice-data network, the next step is to converge all voicemails, emails, software applications (updates, bills, new features) into one secure database for everyone, everywhere. We made a summarized classification of VoIP Services and an evaluation of QoS services and Security requirements by examining different VoIP scenarios.

Keywords: Communications, Voice, Sound-Quality, Threats, VoIP (Voice over Internet protocol), E2E QoS (End-to-End Quality of Service), PSTN (Public Switch Telephony Network), ISDN (Integrated Services Digital Network), Efficiency, NGN (Next Generation Network).

- [1] Pan, Y., Chung, J., Zhang, Z. Analysis of Performance of VoIP Over various scenarios OPNET 14.0. Group 11 Final Report on ENSC 427 Communication Networks, Simon Fraser University Spring 2012.
- [2] https://en.wikiquote.org/wiki/Dr. Seuss (accessed on 13.11.2015).
- [3] Dilekci, D., Wang, C., Feng Xu, J., The Analysis and Simulation of VoIP Group 3 Final Project Report on ENSC 427 Communication Networks, Simon Fraser University, 2013.
- [4] https://docente.ifrn.edu.br/rodrigotertulino/livros/packettracer- network-simulator (accessed on 30.04.2016).
- [5] http://www.cisco.com/c/dam/en_us/training-events/netacad/course catalog/docs/Cisco PacketTracer DS.pdf (accessed on 03.05.2016).

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 237-243

Maintenance Testing of a Software Product

Sabina-Daniela AXINTE, Ioan C. BACIVAROV

Facultatea de Electronică, Telecomunicații și Tehnologia Informației, Universitatea POLITEHNICA din București, România

axinte sabina@yahoo.com, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

Maintainability, along with conformity, reliability and security, is the characteristic of quality that measures effortlessness and promptness to maintain a system or a software product. Maintainability testing is part of non-functional testing in a software product life cycle. Software maintenance testing is triggered by modifications of components or systems already used in production and it is split in four categories: corrective maintenance, perfective maintenance, adaptive maintenance, preventive maintenance. The main reasons of performing maintenance tests are: modification, migration and retirement. An analytical overview of this testing technique and methods are presented. In addition, the last chapter is dedicated to a comparative analysis of tools that can be use for manual, semi-automated, or automated maintenance testing.

Keywords: Maintainability, Maintenance, Software, Maintenance testing, Software life cycle, Testing tools

- [1] M. Pol, E. van Veenendaal, "Structured testing of information systems: an introduction to Tmap®", Kluwer, 1998.
- [2] Naomi Karten, "Changing How You Manage and Communicate Change: Focusing on the Human Side of Change", IT Governance Publishing, 2009.
- [3] ISO/IEC 14764: 2006, "Software Engineering Software Life Cycle Processes Maintenance".
- [4] Penny Grubb, Armstrong A. Takang, "Software Maintenance: Concepts and Practice", World Scientific Publishing Company, 2003.
- [5] Alain April, Alain Abran, "Software Maintenance Management", New York, Wiley, 2008, ISBN 978-0-470- 14707-8.
- [6] www.reliasoft.com/BlockSim/maintainability analysis.htm (accesat la 21.06.2016)
- [7] Peter Morgan, Angelina Samaroo, Brian Hambling, "Software Testing: An ISTQB-ISEB Foundation Guide", BCS; Revised edition, 2010, ISBN 978-1906124762.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 244-253

On Physical and Logical Security Risks Management in the Context of Convergent Security

Marian FIROIU, Ioan BACIVAROV

EUROQUALROM - ETTI, Universitatea "Politehnica" Bucuresti, Romania mfiroiu@hotmail.com, bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro

Abstract

In the first part of the paper it is analyzed the concept of converged security, taking into account the new kinds of attacks and rapidly evolving cyber threats in frequency and sophistication. In this context, the problem of risk management of physical and logical security is analyzed. There are considered advanced persistent threats and attacks, malicious attacks etc., in terms of IoT accelerated development of new technologies and their multiple risks in moving the IOE.

Keywords: IT security, Convergent security, Security risk management, Physical and logical security, Convergence

- [1] Alliance for Enterprise Security Risk Management "Convergence of physical and information security in the context of risk management", 2007; http://www.aesrm.org/aesrm_convergence_in ERM pdf, Web retrieve on December 22, 2009
- [2] Watson, James, Physical and IT Security Must Go Together, Computing, May 4, 2005.
- [3] www.honeywellintegrated.com The Convergence of Physical and Logical Security
- [4] https://www.dhs.gov/homeland-security-presidential-directive-12
- [5] www.asisonline.eu/docs/Convergence-Enterprise-Security- Organizations.pdf / The Alliance for Enterprise Security Risk Management, Convergence of Enterprise Security Organizations, 2005
- [6] www.opensecurityexchange.com, 2014
- [7] Booz, Allen, Hamilton, Convergence of Enterprise Security Organizations, The Alliance for Enterprise Security Risk Management (AESRM), 2005.
- [8] Cisco Bring Your Own Device Device Freedom Without Compromising the IT Network Last Updated: April 18, 2012
- [9] Shortreed, John. 2010. ERM Frameworks. In: Fraser, John R.S. & Simkins, Betty J. [ed.]. Enterprise Risk Management. Hoboken, New Jersey: John Wiley & Sons.
- [10] ISO 31000: 2009 Principles and Guidelines on Implementation 11] Countering the Advanced Persistent Threat Challenge with Deep Discovery A Trend Micro White Paper | April 2013
- [12] www.dunbarcybersecurity.com_ Security Convergence Physical Meets Digital How The Internet Of Things Is Changing Security _ Christopher Ensey _June 2014
- [13] http://www.isaca.org/Journal/Past-Issues/2003/Volume- 4/Documents/jpdf034 -Identity and Access Management.pdf _ Identity and Access Management Transforming E-security into a Catalyst for Competitive Advantage By Bill McQuaide

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 244-253

[14] www.europarl.europa.eu/meetdocs/..._/com_com(2009)0278_ ro.pdf_ Internetul obiectelor - un plan de acțiune pentru Europa Bruxelles, 18.6.2009 COM(2009) 278 final

- [15] www.itu.int/dms_pub/itu-s/opb/pol/S-POL-IR.IT-2005-SUMPDFE. pdf (raportul ITU/ISTAG ftp://ftp.cordis.europa.eu/pub/ist/docs/istagscenarios2010.pdf.)
- [16] Source: Cisco IBSG, 2011
- [17] "The Internet of Things: How the Next Evolution of the Internet Is Changing Everything," Cisco IBSG. April 2011, http://www.cisco.com/web/about/ac79/docs/innov/IoT IBSG 041 1FINAL.pdf
- [18] http://www.cisco.com/web/tomorrow-starts-here/ioe/index.html _ What is the Internet of Everything (IoE)? Cisco Systems
- [19] http://www.cisco.com/web/about/ac79/docs/sp/Next-Generationof- the-Internet.pdf_ The Next Generation of the Internet Revolutionizing the Way We Work, Live, Play, and Learn Author Stuart Taylor April 2013.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 254-257

Process approach of the quality-environment management system according to ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015

Daniela Simona MOLDOVAN

Managementul Calitatii, Compania Apa Brasov, Romania danielamoldovan@apabrasov.ro

Abstract

The process orientated approach constitutes an essential element in maintain and improving the integrated quality-environment management systems through the transition to the new ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 14001:2015 standards. The successful keeping of a performing management in an integrated manner by quality - environment systemic approach allows the investigation of management system and leads to the fulfillment of objectives and targets. The process management according to the international standard ISO 9001:2015 means to apply the methodology "PDCA" (plan-do-check-act) for each process. The motivation to raise a management integrated system, with SMART features and objectives by reporting to standard requirements, has as support internal forces (manager vision) or external forces (requirements related to regulation). This work presents the concept of process approach within the integrated quality-environment management system, considered in the PDCA cycle, including the risk-based thinking approach.

Keywords: process approach, quality management, environment management, integration, risk

- [1] SR EN ISO 9001:2015 Sisteme de management al calității. Cerinte, ASRO, sept. 2015.
- [2] SR EN ISO 14001:2015 Sisteme de management de mediu. Cerinte cu ghid de utilizare, ASRO, nov. 2015.
- [3] Modelul Abordarii procesuala, Daniela Moldovan, Compania Apa Brasov, 2016.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 258-265

Employee engagement - the key ingredient of business success. Human nature impact on business

Petrișor GAGIU

QA Department, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania pgagiu@alro.ro

Abstract

Lucrarea se constituie într-o reflexie asupra unui subiect deosebit de fierbinte și anume valoarea reală a resursei umane pentru afacere. Sunt puse în balanță coordonatele care definesc utilitatea resursei umane în context organizațional, coordonate care includ: aspectele psihointelectuale, aspecte relaționale, mecanisme motivaționale intrinseci. Pornind de la aceste coordonate sunt trecute în revistă și evaluate ca utilitate și eficacitate, posibile căi de acțiune, care să compatibilizeze resursa umană cu dezideratele organizaționale. În acest context, ca un corolar al acestor considerații se ridică o întrebare legitimă în legătură cu amploarea și scara schimbărilor organizaționale și managerial necesare atingerii nivelului critic de implicare a agenților umani și cooperare a acestora, care să asigure manifestările sinergetice care condiționează performanța organizațională superioară. Această întrebare la care autorii sugerează unele răspunsuri, implică discernerea între nivelele de schimbare organizațională, sectorială/ națională/ regională sau o nouă revoluție a modului în care societatea umană generează valoare.

Keywords: implicarea angajaților; eficacitate; efort discreționar

- [1] Paul Sanchez și Dan Macauley Global Business and Organizational Excellence, Wiley Periodicals Inc. 2006
- [2] Abraham, Susan. SIES Journal of Management sep 2012
- [3] Arnold B. Bakker, Michael P.Leiter Work Engagement A Handbook of Essential Theory and Research, Psychology Press 2010
- [4] Safiah Rashida, Mohd Amy Azhar bin Mohd Harif b Othman Yeop Abdullah Employee engagement: a qualitative research on critical factors within malaysia's SME businesses
- [5] Gemma Robertson-Smith and Carl Markwick Employee Engagement A review of current thinking Copyright © 2009 Institute for Employment Studies
- [6] William A. Kahn Psychological Conditions of Personal Engagement and Disengagement at WorkACAD Manage J December 1, 1990 33:4692-724;
- [7] Wilmar B. Schaufeli , Michael P. Leiter, Christina Maslach Burnout: 35 years of research and practice
- [8] James K. Harter, Frank L. Schmidt, Iowa Emily A. Killham Employee Engagement, Satisfaction, and Business-Unit-Level Outcomes: A Meta-Analysis Prepared by
- [9] Alan M. Saks "Antecedents and consequences of employee engagement", Journal of Managerial Psychology, 2006

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 258-265

- [10] Edward O. Wilson Cucerirea socială a pământului, editura Humanitas 2013
- [11] Brad Shuck and Karen Wollard Employee Engagement and HRD: A Seminal Review of the Foundations December 2009
- [12] Mike Johnson The New Rules of Engagement Paperback 2004
- [13] Clifford, B.R. and Scott, J. Individual and situational factors in eyewitness memory. Journal of Applied Psychology, 1978
- [14] Kahn, William A. "Psychological Conditions of Personal Engagement and Disengagement at Work." Academy of Management Journal. Dec 1990
- [15] Towers Perrin Working Today: Understanding What Drives Employee Engagement The Talent Report 2003
- [16] Christina Maslach, Wilmar B. Schaufeli, Michael P. Leiter JOB BURNOUT Annu. Rev. Psychol. 2001.
- [17] Wilmar B. Schaufeli, Marisa Salanova, Vicente Gonzalez Roma and Arnold B. Bakker '- The measurement of engagement and burnout: a two sample confirmatory factoranalytic approach (Received 15 December, 2000; Accepted 5 August, 2001)
- [18] James K. Harter, Ph.D., Frank L. Schmidt, Ph.D., Emily A. Killham Employee Engagement, Satisfaction, and Business-Unit-Level Outcomes: A Meta-Analysis 2003
- [19] Mateja Drnovsek, Joakim Wincent, Melissa S. Cardon Entrepreneurial self-efficacy and business start-up: developing a multi-dimensional definition
- [20] Gemma Robertson-Smith and Carl Markwick Employee Engagement A review of current thinking, 2009
- [21] Brad Shuck and Karen Wollard Employee Engagement and HRD: A Seminal Review of the Foundations
- [22] By Marcus Buckingham and Curt Coffman First, Break all the Rules, 2000
- [23] Mark Attridge Measuring and Managing Employee Work Engagement: A Review of the Research and Business Literature Published online: 01 Dec 2009
- [24] Wah Louisa Management review: Engaging Employees a Big Challenge, Academic journal 1999
- [25] Bruce Temkin The ROI of customer experience: Analysis Shows High Correlation Between Customer Experience and Loialty, Temkin Group 2012
- [26] Dan Crim, Jerard Seijts What Engages Employees the Most OR, the Ten Cs of Employee Engagement, Ivey Business Journal 2006
- [27] Linda K. Johnsrud, Vicky J. Rosser Quality of Faculty Work Life the University of Hawai'i, 1999
- [28] James K. Harter, Frank L. Schmidt, Theodore L. Hayes Business-Unit-Level Relationship Between Employee Satisfaction, Employee Engagement, and Business Outcomes: A Meta-Analysis, Journal of Applied Psychology 2002
- [29] Wilmar B. Schaufeli, Marisa Salanova Efficacy or inefficacy, that's the question: Burnout and work engagement, and their relationships with efficacy belief, 2007
- [30] James K. Harter, Frank L. Schmidt, Theodore L. Hayes Business-Unit-Level relationship between employee satisfaction, employee engagement, and Business Outcomes: A Meta-Analysis, Journal of Applied Psychology 2002
- [31] Susan Cartwright, Nicola Holmes The meaning of work: The challenge of regaining employee engagement and reducing cynicism, Elsevier 2006
- [32] Saija Mauno, Ulla Kinnunen, Mervi Ruokolainen Job demands and resources as antecedents of work engagement a longitudinal study, Journal of Vaocational Behavior 2007
- [33] Crabtree S. Engagement keeps the doctor away; A happy employee is a healty employee, according to a GMJ survey, Gallup Management Journal 2005
- [34] Bakker A.B., Demerouti E. Towards a model of work engagement. Career Development International, 2008

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 258-265

- [35] Wilmar B. Schaufeli, Bakker A.B. Work engagement: An emerging concept in occupational health psychology, Work and stress vol.20 2008
- [36] Saar Langelaan Burnout and work engagement: Do individual differences make a difference?, Personality and Individual Differences 2006
- [37] Barbara L. Fredrickson The Role of Positive Emotions in Positive Psychology_The Broadenand-Build Theory of Positive Emotions, Am psychol 2001
- [38] Yoon SY, Lee Y, Kim JH, Chung AS, Joo JH, Kim CN, Kim NS, Choe IS, Kim JW Over-expression of human UREB1 in colorectal cancer: HECT domain of human UREB1 inhibits the activity of tumor suppressor p53 protein 2005
- [39] Janice R. Kelly, Sigal G. Barsade Mood and Emotions in Small Groups and Work Teams Organizational Behavior and Human Decision Processes 2001.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 266-275

Calculating Overall Equipment Efficiency for Management Decision

Shocking OEE and the Correct Performance

Alexandru GIURA

QA Department, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania agiura@alro.ro

Abstract

Overall Equipment Efficiency (OEE) is the specific metric for Total Productive Maintenance (TPM) approach of achieving production efficiency. In order to take advantage of such approach OEE and its structural elements must be defined and calculated in a manner enabling the management to make the appropriate improvement decisions. This work proposes a changed structure and calculation manner for OEE and its components aiming to provide management with the adequate information for the decision process concerning the systematic achievement of equipment efficiency.

Keywords: Overall Equipment Efficiency (OEE), Total Productive Maintenance (TPM), process flow

simulation, Work in Progress (WIP), productivity, hourly consumption

- 1. Gibbons P. M., Burgess S. C., Introducing OEE as a measure of lean Six Sigma capability, Intrenational Journal of Lean Six Sigma, Vol. 1, No. 2, pp 134-156, 2010.
- 2. Huang S.H., Dismukes J.P., Shi J., Su Q., Razzak M. A., Bodhale R, Robinson D. E., Manufacturing productivity improvement using effectiveness metrics and simulation analysis, Journal for Production Resources, Vol. 41, No. 3, 2003, pp. 513-527.
- 3. Iannone R., Nenni E., Managing OEE to Optimize Factory Performance, Ch. 2 in Operation Management, edited by M. M. Schiraldi, ISBN 978-953-51-1013-2, Publisher InTech, 2013.
- 4. Ivancic I., Development of Maintenance in Modern Production, Proceedings od 14 th European Maintenance Conference, EUROMAINTENANCE, Dubrovnik, Hrvatska, October 1998, pp. 5-7.
- 5. Muthiah K. M., Huang S. H., Overall throughput effectiveness (OTE) metric for factory-level performance monitoring and bottleneck detection, International Journal of Production Research, Vol. 45, Iss. 20, pp 4753-4769, 2007.
- 6. Nakajima S., Introduction to TPM, Prod Press, New York, 1988.
- 7. Raouf A., Improving Capital Productivity Through Maintenance, International Journal of Operations & Production Management, Vol. 14, Issue 7, 1994, pp. 44-52.
- 8. Schiraldi M. M., (editor), Operations Management, Publisher: InTech, ISBN 978-953-51-1013-2, 2013.
- 9. Shahin A., Attarpour M. R., Developing Decision Making Grid for Maintenance Policy Making Based on Estimated Range of Overall Equipment Effectiveness, Modern Applied Science, ISSN 1913-1852 (Online) Vol. 5, No. 6, pp. 86-97, 2011.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 266-275

10. Zammori , Braglia M., Frosolini M., Stochastic Overall Equipment Effectiveness, International Journal of Production Research, Vol. 49, Iss. 21, pp. 6469-6490, 2011.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 276-278

Six Sigma Tools and the Eight Key to Risk Management

Marius FLORESCU

S.C. CALITATE TOP 21 S.R.L. SLATINA marius 21@yahoo.com

Abstract

Six Sigma is a process measurement and management system that enables employees and companies to take a process oriented view of the entire business. Using the various concepts embedded in Six Sigma, key processes are identified, the outputs of these processes are prioritized, the capability is determined, improvements are made, if necessary and a management structure is put in place to assure the ongoing success of the business.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 283-288

Managerial Approach of Occupational Safety and Health According to ISO 45001 in the Health Care Sector

Steluța Elisabeta NISIPEANU, Ruxandra CHIURTU, Doru Costin DARABONT

The National Research and Development Institute on Occupational Safety - INCDPM "Alexandru Darabont" Bucharest, Romania

nisipeanusteluta@gmail.com, ruxichiurtu@yahoo.com, darabont d@yahoo.com

Abstract

The paper aims at presenting the importance of the occupational health and safety (OHS) management approach in the public health care sector, occupational health and safety management system (OHSMS), according to ISO 45001 - a tool that combines policy, people and means to improve continuously the performance of the organization. It promotes the adoption of an integrate management system in order to develop and improve the public health care sector organizations and develop the protection and prevention policies on occupational injuries and accidents.

Keywords: occupational safety and health, healthcare sector, management, risk, prevention

- [1] Elizabeth Gasiorowski-Denis , ISO 45001 on occupational health and safety has been approved for Draft International Standard public consultation on 12 February 2016
- [2] Nisipeanu S.E., Manuc D., Chiurtu E.R., Haiducu, M., (2014), Importance of safety and health at work managerial approach in the public health sector, Risk and safety Review, No. 1, 34-35
- [3] European Agency for Safety&Health at Work, (2015), Information, https://osha.europa.eu/
- [4] European Commission, (2010), Europe 2020 A strategy for smart, sustainable and inclusive growth, Brussels, http://ec.europa.eu/europe2020/index_en.htm
- [5] European Union, (2014), The EU explained: Public health, European Commission, Luxembourg: Publications Office of the European Union, 4-8
- [6] Eurostat Database, (2014), http://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/statisticsexplained/index.php/Accidents_at_work_statistics
- [7] Occupational health and safety management systems BS OHSAS 18001 moving to ISO 45001
- [8] Report published in September 2014 by: International Register of Certificated Auditors (IRCA), part of The Chartered Quality Institute (CQI), 2nd Floor North, Chancery Exchange, 10 Furnival Street, London EC4A 1AB
- [9] ILO, (2013), Reports of the officers of the Governing Body Developments in relation to the International Organization for Standardization, including in the field of occupational safetyand health (OSH)
- [10] ILO Governing body, (2013), Institutional Section Further developements in relation to the the International Organization for Standardization, including in the field of occupational safetyand health (OSH)

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 283-288

- [11] International Register of Certificated Auditors (IRCA), (2014), Occupational health and safety management systems BS OHSAS 18001 moving to ISO 45001, The Chartered Quality Institute (CQI), 2nd Floor North, Chancery Exchange, 10 Furnival Street, London EC4A 1AB
- [12] ISO 45001, (2015), Occupational health and safety management systems Requirements- Draft
- [13] ISO/CD 45001, (2015), Occupational health and safety management systems Requirements with guidance for use
- [14] Occupational health and safety, (2015), http://www.iso.org/iso/iso45001
- [15] Dobos C., (2005), Public healthcare services and social development, Quality of Life Review, XVI, 3–4, 373–385
- [16] Nisipeanu S.E., Haiducu M., Chiurtu E.R., Scarlat I., Avram R. Social Responsibility, a Priority Objective of the Europe 2020 Strategy, 21st World Future Studies Federation World Conference "Global Research And Social Innovation: Transforming Futures" Bucharest, 26-28 June 2013, http://www.wfsfconference.org/
- [17] Nisipeanu S.E., Stepa R., Chiurtu E.R., Haiducu M., (2012), Social Responsibility and OSH in the context of Romanian national SR strategy and the publication of ISO 26000 Guidelines for social responsibility, Book of Abstracts of International Conference "Towards Safety Through Advanced Solutions" Sopot, Poland, 198-199 http://www.wos2012.pl/ book-of-abstracts/

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 289-294

Napoleon the 1st' leadership

Bogdan VISSARION, Cătălina ȚUŢULEA

SAMSUNG-OŢELINOX, Târgovişte, România bogdan.vissarion@otelinox.ro, catalina.tutulea@otelinox.ro

Abstract

Persoană plină de iniţiativă, a cărei amprentă este încă marcantă asupra Franței şi Europei, cu largi viziuni asupra schimbării şi inovaţiei, strateg recunoscut, orator desăvârşit şi cu o putere deosebită de convingere a auditoriului a dovedit reale calităţi în arta de a conduce sau în leadership în accepţiunea zilelor noastre. Despre liderul militar şi politic care a marcat atât cultura franceză cât şi pe cea universală, care a transformat radical sistemele juridic, politic şi economic ale Franţei se pot scrie tomuri întregi. Scopul prezentării de faţă este desigur mult mai modest: de a face simple conexiuni între capacităţile sale recunoscute şi manifestate cu atâta vreme în urmă şi modernele principii ale ledearship-ului. In cele ce urmează vor fi trecute în revistă trăsăturile şi manifestările dovedite ale acestui lider, corelate cu actualele roluri şi responsabilităţi presupuse de un leadership eficient.

- [1] http://neculaifantanaru.com/calitatile-unui-lider.html#ixzz4Cf hz1H7Y
- [2] Manole Neagoe: "Napoleon", Editura Meridiane, București, 1970
- [3] http://www.napoleon.org/en/magazine/museums/ files/Invalides and Military Museum.asp
- [4] http://www.inc.com/jeff-haden/75-inspiring-motivational-quo teson-leadership.html
- [5] Camelia Frățilă: "Comportament organizațional", Editura Fundației pntru Studii Europene, Cluj-Napoca, 2004
- [6] Note de curs: "Comportament organizațional", Camelia Frățilă, 2010, Master "Managementul Serviciilor Publice", Universitatea Valahia din Târgoviște
- [7] http://www.leaders.ro/leaders/despre-leadership/
- [8] http://www.inc.com/justin-bariso/in-search-of-the-definition-ofleadership. html
- [9] E. V Tarle: "Napoleon", Ediția a II-a, traducere de Nicolae Parocescu, Editura Cartea Rusă, București, 1958.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 295-299

Certification - impulse of the profitable business

Luigi ENE, Cătălina ŢUŢULEA

SAMSUNG-OŢELINOX, Târgovişte, România luigi.ene@otelinox.ro, catalina.tutulea@otelinox.ro

Abstract

Inființată la 1 iunie 1974, odată cu asigurarea fondurilor de investiții puse la dispoziție în urma acordului realizat între Banca Internațională pentru Reconstrucție și Dezvoltare și Banca Centrală de Investiții din România, Oțelinox Târgoviște deține în prezent o capacitate de producție pentru benzi din oțeluri inoxidabile de 60.000 tone/an. Având în jur de 700 salariați, compania a înregistrat o cifră de afaceri de peste 33.000.000 Euro în 2015, produsele realizate exportându-se în special în Europa (peste 70% din volumul total al exportului), dar și în America de Nord, America de Sud, Asia etc. Vorbind astăzi doar despre certificările Sistemelor de Management, prima certificare a fost obținută în 1996 conform cerințelor standardului ISO 9002 - Sisteme de calitate. Model pentru asigurarea calității în producție, instalații și servicii, continuând până în prezent cu obținerea certificărilor: ISO 9001 - Sisteme de management al calității. Cerințe; ISO/TS 16949 - Sisteme de management al calității. Cerințe particulare pentru aplicarea ISO 9001 în organizații cu producție de autovehicule și de piese de schimb aferente; ISO 14001 - Sisteme de Management al Mediului și OHSAS 18001 - Sisteme de management al sănătății și securității ocupaționale. Cerințe.

- [1] http://www.feralrom.ro/istorie
- [2] http://www.jurnaldedambovita.ro/jdb_articol--platformaindustriala-targovisteana-pe-butuci,30852.html
- [3] Suport curs intern tratamente termice Otelinox, 2013
- [4] http://www.otelinox.com/ro/products/general_description.asp
- [5] http://www.worldbank.org/depweb/english/sd.html

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 300-306

Food deceptions - standards, legislation and practice

Cornelia ŞULEA

Quality, Food Safety - Lead Auditor SRAC CERT, Bucharest, ROMANIA cornelia sulea@yahoo.com

Abstract

The idea of drawing up this work emerged due to the attendance invitation for SRAC CERT to Food Fraud Community of Practice, an initiative accomplished with PriceWaterhouse Coopers and Wageningen University. At that moment, we realised that we, the auditors do not fully understand the concept of Food Fraud and that we are ot ready to conduct an audit on this requirement. Therefore I started to study the law, the existing standards, and to read about incorrect practise of companies worldwide. Thus I read in John Spink's book "Food Safety in China: Past, Present and Future" a generous chapter on Food Fraud and the history of food Fraud in China. I have realized the size of the phenomenon worldwide, as of all counterfeit goods, about 10% are food products, and of total merchandised food products, between 1% -3% are counterfeit. This work aims to be an informative material that explain and differentiate related concepts, such as Food Safety, Food Defense and Food Fraud. I extracted from the existing European Union and Romanian Legislation those articles referring to to this type of law-braking. I presented the most frequent and most recent types of fraud in the food branch. I have searched in the quality and food safety standards, for those requirements that explicitely refers to food frauds, or requirements of general standards to which the identified nonconformities of the audits could be enframed and would give evidence of vulnerabilities for the audited organizations. I have proposed several questions for the responsible persons of the organizations, in order to detect possible discrepancies in regard to standards requirements, legal requirements and clients' requirements.

- 1. BRC, ed 7/2015–Global Standard for Food Safety (British Retail Consortium)
- 2. FSSC 22000 ASIA Event 11 November 2015 Tokyo -Preparing for GFSI Guidance vers 7
- 3. ISO 9001 :2015, Sisteme de management al calitatii Cerinte
- 4. ISO 22000 :2005, Sisteme de management al sigurantei alimentelor. Cerinte pentru orice organizatie din lantul alimentar
- 5. IFS Food vers 6/2014, Standard de auditare pentru calitatea si siguranta produselor alimentare
- 6. FFI Report- Review of the New GFSI Guidance Document Issue 7 Regarding Food Fraud, February 11, 2016.
- 7. SSAFE-Food-Fraud-Vulnerability-Assessment-Tool.
- 8. Rezoluția Parlamentului European din 2014 referitoare la criza alimentară, fraudele din lanțul alimentar și controlul acestora.
- 9. Articol Bussines Magazin, autor: Bogdan Cojocaru, postat la 12 iunie 2016.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 307-312

Reflections on the approach of the audit of risks and opportunities, seen through the perspective of the requirements of the new editions of the management systems standards

Cristian RONCEA

SRAC CERT cristinel.roncea@srac.ro

Abstract

Acest articol prezinta câteva consideratii privind modalitatile practice de a efectua auditul sistemelor de management, orientate pe abordarea riscurilor si oportunitatilor.

Keywords: riscuri, oportunitati, abordarea riscurilor, audit

- 1. ISO/TMB/JTCG N 360 N360 JTCG concept document to support Annex SL.
- 2. ISO 9001:2015 Quality management systems Requirements.
- 3. ISO 14001:2015 Environmental management systems Requirements with guidance for use.
- 4. ISO 14004:2016 Environmental management systems General guidelines on implementation.
- 5. ISO/DIS 45001:2015 Occupational health and safety management system. Requirements with guidance for use.
- 6. IRCA&CQI, ISO 9001:2015 Understanding the International Standard, CQI, Report, 2015.
- 7. IRCA&CQI, ISO 14001:2015 Understanding the International Standard, CQI, Report, 2015.
- 8. www.iso.org/tc176/ISO9001 AuditingPracticesGroup.
- 9. ISO ISO 9001:2015 Revision. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) ISO/TC 176/SC2/N1288.
- 10. ISO/TC 176/SC2/N1284 Risk-Based Thinking in ISO 9001:2015.

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 313-322

Organizational entropy and creative potential

Alexandru GIURA, Mariana VASILE

QA Department, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania; Internal Audit, ALRO SA, Slatina, Romania agiura@alro.ro, mavasile@alro.ro

Abstract

Creativitatea este o resursă vitală a organizației într-o vreme în care inovarea este cuvântul de ordine în tot ceea ce ține de succesul în afaceri ca și în activități nonprofit. De aceea, este esențial ca atenția managementului organizației săse îndrepte către pârghiile care favorizează manifestarea creativă a resursei umane, la toate nivelele și procesele din organizație. În acest context, este important să se identifice aceste pârghii și să fie puse la dispoziția managementului. Lucrarea de față, prima dintr-un șir de lucrări dedicate acestui subiect, pune în legătură manifestările creative în contextul organizațional cu libertatea, în sensul cel mai general, a a gentului creativ. La rândul său, conceptul de libertate este asociat cu o anumită dezordine, în sens pozitiv, de diversitate, flexibilitate, fluiditate, descentralizare etc. Această asociere are avantajul de a permite utilizarea unor metrici specifice care au la bază conceptele de entropie și energie informațională

Keywords: organizational system, creativity, organizational entropy, information energy

- [1] Boltzmann, Ludwig, Lectures on gas theory, Dover Publications, Inc, New York, 1995, ISBN 0-486-68455-5
- [2] Ebeling, Werner; Volkenstein, Michail V., Entropy and the Evolution of Biological Information, in: Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, Volume 163, Issue 1, 1 February 1990, Pages 398-402
- [3] Giura, Alexandru., On Managing the Creative Potential of the Organisation, The XIIIth International Conference for Inventics "Inovative Performant Technologies and Research", 2009
- [4] Heylighen, Francis, Representation and Change. A Metarepresentational Framework for the Foundations of Physical and Cognitive Science, Communication & Cognition, Ghent, Belgium, 1990, web edition 1999
- [5] Huizinga, Johans, Homo ludens, Editura Humanitas, ISBN- 9789735034801
- [6] INCOSE (International Council on Systems Engineering), Systems Engineering Handbook v. 3.2.2, October 2011
- [7] Marcus Solomon, Jocul ca libertate, Editura Scripta, 2003, ISBN-973-8238-13-7
- [8] Murray, Gell-Mann, The Quark and the Jaguar: Adventures in the Simple and the Complex, Henry Holt and company, LLC, 1994, ISBN-13:978-0-8050-7253-2
- [9] Onicescu, Octav, Elemente de statistica informationala cu aplicatii, Editura Tehnică, 1979
- [10] Parsons, Talcott, The Social System. Routledge, 1991, ISBN 0-415-06055-9
- [11] Prigogine, Ilya, Time, structure and fluctuations. Nobel Lecture in Chemistry, 1977, Univ., 1978
- [12] Rudolf, Clausius, The Mechanical Theory of Heat, Taylor and Francis, Harvard University Library, 1870
- [13] Schrödinger, Erwin, What is Life?, Cambridge University Press, 1992

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016

ISSN 1842-3566

Pages 313-322

- [14] Schuster, Christian, Sistemul lui Niklas Luhmann. O schimbare de paradigmă. Teză de doctorat, Universitatea Babes- Bolyai, Cluj-Napoca, 2011
- [15] Shannon, Claude E., A Mathematical Theory of Communication. The Bell System Technical Journal, Lucent Technology Inc. 1948
- [16] Testa B., Kier L.B., Emergence and Dissolvence in the Selforganisation of Complex Systems, Entropy, 2000, ISSN 1099-4300
- [17] Thomson, William, On the dynamical theory of heat; with numerical results deduced from Mr. Joule's equivalent of a thermal unit and M. Regnault's observations on steam, Philosophical Magazine Series 4, Volume 4, Issue 22, 2009
- [18] Von Bertalanffy, Ludwig, General System Theory: Foundations, Development, Applications, George Braziller Inc, 1968
- [19] Wiener, Norbert., Cybernetics or Control and Communication in the Animal and the Machine. MIT Press, 1965

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 323-331

A Generic Example of an Energy Review in Conformity with ISO 50001 Standard

Leonida Brînduş STĂNOIU

Comitetul Electrotehnic Român, Bucuresti, Romania cer@icpe.ro

Abstract

This paper presents a generic example of energy review in conformity with ISO 50001 standard related to a organization which during the analyzed time period that, in the past, was applied successive upgrades, with the consequences of some major modifications of the production, energy use and consumption. A period of time the organization has implemented the energy management system and functioned in a stable manner. This allowed its election as a representative time period for tracking present energy consumption and some relevant variables of the identified significant energy uses. The construction of this example includes that situation in the future time period, equivalent to the one in present, in which organization applies a new upgrade and estimate in this conditions the energy use and consumption. The considered example as other elements of associated energy planning included in this paper provides an approach that could be useful to those involved in the implementation of an energy system management.

- [1] International Organization for Standardization, "ISO 50001:2011 Energy management systems Requirements with guidance for use"
- [2] International Organization for Standardization, "ISO 50004:2014 Energy management systems Guidance for the implementation, maintenance and improvement of an energy management system"
- [3] Leonida Brindus Stanoiu "Metoda pentru determinarea nivelurilor de referinta privind utilizarea energiei si intensitatea energetica", Revista SRAC
- [4] math.ubbcluj.ro T.Grosan, Regresii liniare

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 332-333

Systems Reliability and Safety Analysis Using Fault Trees. A FTA Software Packages Comparison

Ioan C. BACIVAROV, Josselin GADSAUDES

EUROQUALROM - ETTI-UPB, Bucharest, Romania; Université d'Angers - ISTIA, Angers, France bacivaro@euroqual.pub.ro, josselin.gads@gmail.com

Abstract

In the first part of the paper a critical study concerning the Fault Tree Analysis (FTA) method is made. The Fault Tree Analysis translates the physical system into a logical diagram due to which it is one of the most favored method involved in reliability and safety analysis of high functional importance systems. It was originated from aerospace industry and then adapted by nuclear power plant industry to qualify and quantify the hazards and risks involve in nuclear power generation. The Fault Tree Analysis is a top down deductive approach, in which the causes of an event are deduced. This method gives a visual model of how equipment failure, human error and external factors a.o. contribute to an accident or critical event for the analyzed system. Several symbols and logical gates are used in this analysis. This method was introduced in the Romanian technical literature in reliability field by Ioan Bacivarov in 1977 in a conference given at the 1st National Research Symposium in Electronic Technology [1] and structured in [2].

In the second part of the paper, a procedure for fault trees construction and evaluation based on [5] was developed; Define the system of interest: the boundaries of interest are defined in this step on which analysis is to be made along with the conditions of the system. Define top event of the system: Specify the problem on which the analysis will be made like shutdown, pipe rupture etc. Define tree top Structure: Define the events and the conditions that lead to the top event. Explore each branch in successive level of details: Determine the events and conditions that lead to the intermediate event and keep repeating this process at different successive levels unless the fault tree is completed. Solve the fault tree for the combination of events contributing to the top event: Examine all the event and conditions that are necessary for the top event to occur and develop a minimal cut set. Identify important dependent failure potentials and adjust the model appropriately: Study the event and find the dependencies among the event that can cause a single or multiple events and conditions to occur simultaneously. Perform quantitative analysis: Use the past statistical data to evaluate or predict the future performance of the system. Use the results in decision making: Find the conditions in which the system is at most potential hazard and place appropriate measure and recommendations to counter with such risk.

The advantages and the disadvantages of the FTA method are discussed in the third part of this paper. The conclusion is that the Fault Tree Analysis is a very effective reliability & safety assessment tool for reasonably complex systems; but for very large systems, which includes a large number of equipments and process variables, the fault tree becomes enormous and its quantitative evaluation is complicated and time consuming. Consequently, it is therefore necessary to develop appropriate methods and the use of appropriate software packages, making it possible to build and quantitative assessment of fault trees for very complex systems. Some example concerning the fault tree

Proceedings of the 15th International Conference on Quality and Dependability Sinaia, Romania, September 14th-16th, 2016 ISSN 1842-3566 Pages 332-333

construction and evaluation for electronic systems are presented. Several software packages were used into this aim.

In the last paragraph of the paper, the different software packages used for the construction and analysis of fault trees were discussed and compared, namely: SMARTDRAW, FTA SOFTWARE and EDRAW MAX.

- SMARTDRAW allows to make a clear, easy-to-read fault tree diagram in minutes on any device. SmartDraw is easy to use because it does much of the drawing. Just open a fault tree analysis template, choose from the extensive library of symbols, and type in your information. All the logical gates and different event are availabe. But this software is not able to make a fault tree analysis.
- With FTA SOFTWARE, it is possible to build fault tree with different logical gates. All the current events are available. FTA SOFTWARE enable to do fault tree analyse and particulary the quantitative analysis. With this software you can calculate your fault tree probability for mission time or for Steady-state mode. It includes events and intermediary gate probabilities and you can define the mission duration. Well, it enable to generate and download reports for your fault tree with list of Minimal Cut Sets, list of fault tree events and gates. When you finish building your fault tree, download it to your own PC. When you need to work with this fault tree, you can upload it back to our Fault Tree Analysis tool.
- EDRAW MAX is a vector-based diagramming software with rich examples and templates. It is easy to create fault tree diagrams. With this software you can build your fault tree with up-to-date, intuitive and advanced diagram interface with facilitates full control over the diagram. You have many of elements layout, themes, to facilitate thework. You can all the current logical gates and events and this is easy to use the library. Finally you can do both qualitative and quantitative analysis of data.

- 1. V. Catuneanu, I.C. Bacivarov (coord) Cercetari in tehnologie electronica si fiabilitate, EDP, Bucuresti, 500 pp, 1978.
- 2. V. Catuneanu, I.C. Bacivarov, Fiabilitatea sistemelor de telecomunicatii, Editura Militară, Bucuresti, 1985.
- 3. W. E. Vesely, J. B. Dugan, and J. Fragola, Fault Tree Handbook with Aerospace Applications, 2002.
- 4. C. Cornel, Angelica Bacivarov, I.C. Bacivarov, Software Fault Tree Reliability Analysis Using a Java-based Reliability Library, Proceedings of the 14th International Conference on Quality and Dependability, Sinaia, Romania, 2014, ISSN 1842-3566, pp. 245-250.
- 5. B. Ayyub, Risk analysis in engineering and economics, 2003.
- 6. Jane Marshall: "An Introduction to Fault Tree Analysis (FTA)", WMG, The university of Warwick, PEUSS, 2011/2012, 1-18.

Authors Index

Nuri Mohamed Saad Algheriani Axinte Sabina-Daniela	22 237	Majstorović Vidosav Mihai Ioan-Cosmin Moldovan Simona Daniela	22 211 49, 254
Bacivarov Angelica	167, 218, 233, 334		
Bacivarov C. Ioan	143, 150, 161,	Nakamuro Jun	191
	167, 194, 211,	Neamţu Călin Vasile	49
	225, 237, 244,	Nisipeanu Elisabeta Steluţa	283
	332, 334		
Balme David	185	Oubaiabra Marouane	207
Barbu Ionuț-Daniel	150, 161,		
Best Michael	138	Paris Adrian Stere	181
Birolini Alessandro	130	Pauliş Mihai	167,
Boncea Radu	143, 156, 176	Pascariu Cristian	150, 161
Bucşan Georgeta	126	Petrică Gabriel	225
		Popa Firică	29
Cîrnu Carmen	156		
Chină Remus	107, 116	Raweni Abuajila M. S.	22
Chiurtu Ruxandra	283	Roncea Cristian	307
Copaci Dorina Luminița	218	Rotună Carmen	176
Darabont Doru Costin	283	Scheps Isaac	17
Drăgulănescu George Nicolae	96	Stănoiu Leonida Brânduş	323
		Stăicuț Eugenie	176
Ene Luigi	295	Stoica Manuela	114
		Sylvan Dana	181
Florescu Marius	276	Şulea Cornelia	300
Firoiu Marian	194, 244		
		Târcolea Constantin	181
Gadsaudes Josselin	332	Ţuţulea Cătălina	289, 295
Gagiu Petrişor	258		
Gherghina Cătălina	233	Vasile Mariana	313
Giura Alexandru	266, 313	Vintiloiu Iulia	279
		Vissarion Bogdan	289
Loznen Steli	34, 53, 70		